OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

To be a trusted and preferred business process
outsourcing (BPO) service provider to organizations in
key segments of economies in the region and beyond

We endeavour to delight our customers with BPO
services that use cutting edge technologies and best
practices, enabled by committed people and innovative
processes that protect the integrity and security of our
customer’s data and documents
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors
of

Efficient

E-Solutions

Berhad

(“Efficient”), it is my pleasure to
present to you the Annual Report and
the Audited Financial Statements of
EFFICIENT Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
2014 can be characterized as a challenging year for the
Company. Nevertheless, the Group continues to build on its
firm foundation despite the ever increasing competition in this
industry.
The Group had recorded a consolidated revenue of RM46.1
million in 2014, an increase of 2.7% compared to RM44.9
million last year. Profit after tax was higher at RM 5.6 million,
an increase of 15.4% from RM4.9 million in the previous year.
The increase in both the revenue and profit was the result of
the improved revenue from the data and document processing
(“DDP”) and an improved productivity in the operations during
the year.
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Earnings per share for the financial year increased from 0.69
sen last year to 0.79 sen this year, an increase of 14.5%. The
Group’s total net assets stood at RM125.6 million or RM 0.18
sen per share as at 31 December 2014, an increase of 3.6%
as compared to RM121.2 million a year ago.

DIVIDEND
The Group had on 28 March 2014 paid an interim tax exempt
dividend of 2% per ordinary share of RM0.10 each for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, which is equivalent
to a dividend payout ratio of 29% of the Group’s net profit.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (cont’d)

INDUSTRY TREND & DEVELOPMENT

QUALITY ASSURANCE

The print statement market continues to consolidate with
the continuous migration to e-statement and paperless
environment. However, with the offsetting of population
growth, the paper environment has maintained its importance.
Government initiatives on regulation have also helped
maintained the need for paper notices. With the implementation
of Goods and Services Tax (GST), there is also an opportunity
in the creation of more printed statements. On the e-statement
front, we continue to see growth for customers that use our
platform. We anticipate more contributions from this segment
in the years to come. On competition, with tighter regulations
being imposed on the financial institutions by regulators,
which in turn imposes such relations on service providers like
ourselves, we will foresee consolidation of players over the
next few years. With tighter regulatory controls, it will become
harder for players within the industry to sustain such stringent
rules without having to invest further. That in return will affect
margins and restrict new entrants into the market.

The group continues to hold strong commitment to implement
best business practices via continuous business improvement
programs and management systems.

PROSPECT
As print statements and notices continue to stay relevant for
a while to come, we see our own relevance in this space. We
are constantly looking at process improvements not only to
improve margins but also keep in pace with new regulations in
handling our clients documents. Beyond printing statements,
we are constantly embarking on new initiatives to support
our customers in other areas of document management, i.e.
imaging and archiving. With the growth of use of mobile and
online transactions, there is now a constant need to create
workflows to link the historical physical documents to the
online space.

Efficient MailCom Sdn Bhd (“EMC”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of EFFICIENT, was certified with ISO 9001:2000 (Quality
Management System - QMS) by BSI endorsed by United
Kingdom Accreditation (“UKAS”) on 22 January 2009. EMC
undertakes QMS surveillance audit in its quality management
system and demonstrated compliance with the new revised
ISO 9001:2008 on yearly basis. On 6 December 2014, EMC
obtained latest re-certification by BSI which is accredited by
ASQ National Accreditation Board (“ANAB”)
EMC emphasized the importance of information security
in safeguarding all confidential data including those of its
customers. On 23 October 2009, EMC was certified with ISO/
IEC 27001:2005 (Information Security Management System
- ISMS) for its data print and data capture services at Bukit
Jelutong facility by SIRIM endorsed by UKAS. During the years
since 2009, EMC undertook ISMS internal audit, management
review and external surveillance audit that demonstrated its
compliance with the ISO/IEC 27001:2005 on its information
security management system. On 23 October 2012 EMC
obtained latest re-certification by SIRIM that is endorsed by
UKAS.

Overall we anticipate the current revenues growing steadily
but also new revenue streams in other areas of document
management.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (cont’d)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Recognising the impact of its business activities on the
community and the environment, EFFICIENT is committed
to run our business in a responsible and sustainable manner.
Social responsibility is an integral part of EFFICIENT’s
business philosophy.

(ii) Building Stronger Relationship with Customers
In building a better and stronger relationship with our
customers, we had organized a few friendly matches with
our customers throughout the year.

In line with this philosophy, the Group has taken proactive steps
in making contributions toward community, environment and
workplace. The initiatives undertaken include the continued
provision of food subsidy to our employees, reducing wastages
by improving production efficiency, provision of a safe, healthy
and conducive working environment for our employees and
the preservation of environment.
Among the activities are:(i)

Efficient Sports Club Activities
With the firm belief in maintaining a healthy work life
balance in the workplace and the physical fitness of the
employees, the Group has continuously encouraged all
our staff to actively participate in the Sports Club activities.
This is to inculcate active teamwork among the employees
of the Group and to foster a stronger friendship among
colleagues.

(iii) Aid to the Flood Victims
We had the opportunity, as part of the CSR program
in our company, to provide financial assistance to our
internal staff whose family in their hometown was affected
by the flood, to ease their family burden for their daily living
necessities
APPRECIATION
In closing, the Board would like to record our thanks to all our
customers, partners, vendors, associates and shareholders for
their continued support, trust and confidence given to EFFICIENT.
To our Board members, Management team and our employees
of EFFICIENT Group, our appreciation for your dedication,
resilience and loyalty shown throughout the challenging year
in 2014. I look forward to your continued support in the coming
year as we take Efficient Group to the next level.

DATO’ ABDUL LATIF BIN ABDULLAH
Chairman
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Share Registrar

Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Chairman / Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Symphony Share Registrars Sdn Bhd
Level 6, Symphony House
Pusat Dagangan Dana 1
Jalan PJU 1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel :
03 7849 0777
Fax :
03 7841 8151, 03 7841 8152

Vincent Cheah Chee Kong Managing Director
Victor Cheah Chee Wai Executive Director
Esther Soon Yoke Leng Executive Director
Ho Hin Choy Independent Non-Executive Director
Voong Kian Yee Independent Non-Executive Director
Audit Committee
Voong Kian Yee Chairman
Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Ho Hin Choy
Company Secretaries
Esther Soon Yoke Leng MAICSA 7002027
Tan Kean Wai MAICSA 7056310
Registered Office
No. 3, Jalan Astaka U8/82
Taman Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong
Seksyen U8, Bukit Jelutong
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan
03 7845 2555
Tel
:
Fax
:
03 7842 3155
Homepage :
www.efficient.com.my

Auditors
PKF (AF0911)
Level 33, Menara 1MK
Kompleks 1 Mont’ Kiara
No. 1, Jalan Kiara, Mont Kiara
50480 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel :
Fax :

03 6203 1888
03 6201 8880

Solicitors
Chan Mun Yee & Associates
Principal Bankers
AmBank (M) Berhad
Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad
Affin Bank Berhad
Stock Exchange Listing
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
®

Efficient Softech Sdn Bhd
100%

®

Efficient MailCom Sdn Bhd
100%

®

Efficient International Sdn Bhd
100%

®

®

Efficient Storage Solutions Sdn Bhd
100%

Efficient E-Solutions Berhad
®

Efficient Storage Solutions (Techpark) Sdn Bhd
100%

®

Efficient Digital Esplanade Sdn Bhd
100%

®

Livingston Education Sdn Bhd
100%

®

Digital Junction Sdn Bhd
100%

Regalia Records Management Sdn Bhd
30%

REGALIA SOLUTIONS SDN BHD
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Regalia Solutions Sdn Bhd
30%

Printegrate Sdn Bhd
100%

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATO’ ABDUL LATIF BIN ABDULLAH
Malaysian, aged 65 years
was appointed as the Chairman and Independent NonExecutive Director of EFFICIENT on 2 August 2004. He is also
a member of Audit Committee and Chairman of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee. He gained his Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in International Relations from University Malaya in
1975, Master of Science (Marine Law & Policy) from University
of Wales (UWIST) in 1981, Senior Management Development
Program from Harvard Business School in 1992 and a member
of Chartered Institute of Logistics & Transport, UK in 1990.
He started his career in 1975 with the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
attached to West Asian Desk. He then joined the Malaysian
International Shipping Corporation Berhad as an Executive,
Liner Division. From 1982 to 1992, he was with Perbadanan
Nasional Shipping Line Berhad (“PNSL”) and was instrumental
in the formation and heading a number of subsidiaries and joint
venture companies with the PNSL Group. He was the General
Manager, Business and Corporate Division before opting to
join Mitsui OSK Lines (M) Sdn Bhd in 1990 as a founder
Director and remains as Chairman after his retirement in 2005.
Presently, Dato’ Abdul Latif serves as Chairman of Ancom
Logistics Berhad and Deputy Chairman of Ekowood
International Berhad. He also holds various private limited
company directorships in Malaysia.

VINCENT CHEAH CHEE KONG
Malaysian, aged 56 years
was appointed as the Managing Director of EFFICIENT on 21
January 2004. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (General Political
Science) from the University of Waterloo, Canada. He has
over 20 years of experience as an entrepreneur in various
industry such as outsourcing services, information technology,

security systems, garment manufacturing, food & beverage
and government supplies. He is one of the pioneering members
of Efficient MailCom Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of
EFFICIENT, which he joined in 1990.
He is responsible for formulating and implementing business
policies and corporate strategies of the Group and has been
instrumental in spearheading the progress and development of
the Group to ensure organizational effectiveness.

VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI
Malaysian, aged 45 years
has served as CEO of EFFICIENT from year 2003. He
graduated from the University of Newcastle, Sydney in 1992
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree majoring in Accounting
and Marketing. In May 2008, he attended the Owner / President
Management Programme at Harvard Business School, Boston,
U.S.A. Victor is the Executive Director of EFFICIENT and also
a member of the ESOS Committee.
He started his career in Sime Darby Berhad in 1992, promoted
as Head of Project Sales in Chubb (M) Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary
of Sime Darby Bhd in 1994. In 1997, he joined Efficient
MailCom Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of EFFICIENT,
as a Director.
He has been responsible for the marketing and operations of
the Group. As a leader who is result oriented and focused, he
spearheaded and implemented various processes for major
Group projects in the areas of financial statement printing,
policy printing for insurance companies and scanning and
archiving of security documents for both private and public
sector companies. He was instrumental in the setting up of the
Bukit Jelutong facilities in Shah Alam, which incorporated the
requirements of financial institutions and insurance companies
especially in the area of data security.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

He currently sits on the boards of several other private limited
companies and always seeks to invest in the future by providing
various business opportunities for the Group.

ESTHER SOON YOKE LENG
Malaysian, aged 54 years
was appointed as an Executive Director of EFFICIENT on 21
January 2004. She is the Joint Company Secretary of
EFFICIENT. She is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (ICSA), UK under
the Financial stream. In May 2008, she attended the Owner /
President Management Programme at Harvard Business
School, Boston, United States.
She has over 20 years of experience in financial services and
senior management. Her experience encompassed financial
management, corporate services, strategic human resources
planning and leadership development.
She was one of the pioneering members of Efficient MailCom
Sdn Bhd, a wholly owned subsidiary of EFFICIENT, which she
joined in 1990 and has been instrumental in establishing and
managing the initial operations of the company. She is
responsible for the strategic human resources planning,
leadership training and development and secretarial functions
of the Group. She is also overseeing few initiatives in the
operations and customer service of Efficient MailCom Sdn
Bhd. She holds directorship in various private limited
companies.

HO HIN CHOY
Malaysian, aged 50 years
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
EFFICIENT on 26 February 2007. He is a member of the Audit
Committee and ESOS Committee. He graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Sydney with a Bachelor of
Commerce in Accounting. He also holds a Diploma in Marketing
from Chartered Institute of Marketing (United Kingdom).
He started his career in 1987 with Bland and Partners, Sydney
as an audit and tax agent. He subsequently joined Touche
Ross & Co, England as an exchange trainee in 1988. He joined
Price Waterhouse, Singapore in 1988 as an Auditor. In 1990,
he joined DHL International (S) Pte Ltd, a courier services
company, in Singapore, as a Financial Accountant and
subsequently, in 1991, he joined DHL Worldwide Express Sdn
Bhd, a courier services company, in Petaling Jaya, as a
Finance Manager. Since 1995, he has been a Capital Markets
Services Representative with Public Investment Bank Bhd.
He also sits on the board of various other private limited
companies in Malaysia.

VOONG KIAN YEE
Malaysian, aged 48 years
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
EFFICIENT on 27 April 2011. He was also appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee, member of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and Chairman of ESOS
Committee.
He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA)
and a member of Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (MICPA). He started his career as Audit Assistant
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

in a public accountants firm and subsequently joined Ernst &
Young as Audit Senior. In 1998, he joined a group of companies
principally involved in telecommunication and online ventures,
as Finance Manager. Subsequently in 2001, he joined Kerry
Beverages (Overseas) Limited, a franchisee bottling plant for
bottling and distribution of beverages in People Republic of
China, as Finance Manager. In 2004, he joined Efficient
E-Solutions Berhad as Finance and Administration Manager.
He was a branch manager of a public accountants firm which
he joined since 2006.
Presently, he operates his own company as income tax and
GST agent.

Family relationships
None of the directors of the Company have any family
relationship with any other directors and / or major shareholders
of the Company except Mr Vincent Cheah Chee Kong who is
the brother of Mr Victor Cheah Chee Wai.

Board Meetings
A total of five (5) Board Meetings were held during the financial
year ended 31 December 2014. The record of attendance is as
follows:No. of meeting
attended
Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah

5/5

Vincent Cheah Chee Kong

4/5

Victor Cheah Chee Wai

5/5

Esther Soon Yoke Leng

5/5

Ho Hin Choy			

5/5

Voong Kian Yee		

5/5

Ng Hin Lee (Resigned on 31/7/2014)

2/3

Conflict of interests
None of the directors of the Company have any conflict of
interest with the Group.

Conviction for offences
None of the directors has been convicted of any offences
(excluding traffic offences, if any) within the last 10 years.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee comprises the following directors:

Functions and Duties

Chairman

The Audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with
the Terms of Reference reviewed and approved by the Board
at least once every three (3) years.

Voong Kian Yee
Independent Non-Executive Director
Members
Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah			
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Ho Hin Choy		
Independent Non-Executive Director
The composition of the Audit Committee is in compliance with
paragraph 15.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements.
Meetings
A total of five (5) Audit Committee Meetings were held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The record of
attendance is as follows:No. of meeting
attended
Voong Kian Yee

5/5

Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah

5/5

Ho Hin Choy

5/5
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The roles and responsibilities, amongst others, of the Audit
Committee are as follows:•
To review the audit plan with the external auditors;
•
To review the evaluation of the systems of internal controls
with the external auditors;
•
To review the audit report with the external auditors;
•
To review the assistance given by the Company’s and
Group’s employees to the external auditors;
•
To review the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the internal audit function
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its
work;
•
To review the internal audit programmes, processes, the
results of the internal audit programmes, processes or
investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate
action is taken on the recommendations of the internal
audit function;
•
To review the quarterly results and year end financial
statements, prior to the approval of the Board of Directors,
focusing particularly on:(i) changes in or implementation of major accounting
policy changes;
(ii) significant and unusual events; and
(iii) compliance with accounting standards and other
legal requirements.
•
To review any related party transaction and conflicts of
interest situation that may arise within the Group including
any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that
raises questions of management integrity;
•
To verify that the allocation of options pursuant to the
share scheme for employees complies with the criteria of
allocation;
To review the resignation or dismissal of the external
•
auditors of the Company;

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

•
•
•

To review whether there is reason (supported by grounds)
to believe that the Group’s external auditor is not suitable
for re-appointment;
To recommend the nomination of external auditors, the
audit fees and any question of resignation or dismissal;
and
To promptly report to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on
matters which result in a breach of Listing Requirements.

Summary of activities of the Committee
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the
activities of the Audit Committee covered, amongst others, the
following:
•
Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements
of the Company and the Group prior to recommendation
to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval
•
Recommended the nomination of the external auditors,
Messrs PKF, for appointment as external auditor
•
Reviewed the audit plan 2014 with external auditors.
•
Reviewed the assistance given by the Company’s and
Group’s employees to the external auditors.
•
Reviewed and discussed with external auditors the issues
arising from the statutory audit and the audit report.
•
Discussed problems and reservation arising from external
audit, and any matter the external auditors may wish to
discuss.
•
Approved the audit plan of the internal audit
•
Reviewed the internal audit reports and consideration of
the findings and management’s responses thereto.
•
Reviewed Related Party Transactions and conflict of
interest that may arise within the Group
•
Reviewed Risk Management & Internal Control Statement,
Corporate Governance Statement and Audit Committee
Report

Statement of Verification on ESOS Allocation
Pursuant to Chapter 8.17 of the Main Market Listing
Requirements, the Audit Committee verified and confirmed that
the allocation of Executives’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)
made on 15 March 2011 is in compliance with the criteria for
allocation of options set out in the ESOS By-Law,
There is no option offered to non-executive directors pursuant
to the ESOS By-Law.
Internal Audit Function
The Company has engaged IA Essential, a risk consultancy
specialist, as internal auditors to assist the Audit Committee
and the Board in the effective discharge of their responsibilities
and functions for the financial year. The Internal Auditors
reports to the Audit Committee and is guided by its Audit
Charter in its independent appraisal function. The cost incurred
for the internal audit function amounted to RM33,866.11 for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.
The Internal Auditors is responsible to:•
Perform audit work in accordance with the internal audit
plan, including related follow-up activities.
•
Carry out review on the system of internal controls of the
Group.
•
Review and comment on the efficiency, effectiveness and
adequacy of the existing control policies and procedures.
Provide recommendations, if any, for the improvement of
•
the control policies and procedures.
The Board is of the view that there is no significant breakdown
or weaknesses in the systems of internal controls of the Group
that may result in material losses incurred by the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Efficient E-Solutions
Berhad is pleased to report that for the financial year under
review, the Board has continued to apply good governance
practices in managing and directing the business of the Group
by adopting the recommendations and the best practices
prescribed in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
(“the Code”).
Board of Directors
The objective of the principles stated in the Code is to set
out the fundamental structures for effective functioning of the
board.
The Board has the overall governance responsibilities to
lead and control the Group. The Board reviews the business
direction, development and control of the Group and has
embraced their fiduciary responsibilities in discharging its
stewardship duties. When implementing the business plan,
the Executive Directors are responsible for making and
implementing operational and corporate decisions while
the Non-Executive Directors are responsible to provide
independent views, advice and judgment in consideration of
the interests of shareholders at large.
The Board has defined its schedule of matters and retained
its authority of approval on significant matters covering such
as the corporate exercises, shareholders’ and corporate
communication and governance matters, award of contract,
acquisition and disposal of significant assets.
The Board recognises the importance of strategic plan
and overseeing the conduct of the business. This will
ensure that the business is being properly managed and
controlled. Presently, the strategic business actions and
plans undertaken by the Executive Directors are reviewed by
the Board in consideration of the quarterly financial results
and explanations provided by the Executive Directors and
management.
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The Board has established its Audit Committee, Nomination
& Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and ESOS Committee
to support and assist in discharging its fiduciary duties and
responsibilities. These Committees ensure greater attention,
objectivity and independence are provided in the deliberations
of specific board agenda. In order to ensure the direction
and control of the Group is firmly within the Board, the Board
has defined the terms of reference for each Committee. The
Chairmen of the respective Board Committees would report
to the Board during the Board meetings on significant matters
and salient matters deliberated in the Committees.
The Board has full access to all information, management
and the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
Subject to the Board’s approval, all board members could
seek independent professional advices when necessary in
furtherance their responsibilities,
Apart from schedule of matters mentioned in the foregoing,
the Board has also defined its charter and code of conduct
providing information and guidance to stakeholders on the
ethical approaches applied by the Board.
Descriptions of the background of each director presented
previously remain substantially unchanged. Therefore,
pursuant to Para 9.25 of the Listing Requirements, such
information is published on the corporate website at www.
efficient.com.my for shareholders’ reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Board Independence
Independence is important for ensuring objectivity and
fairness in board’s decision making.
Presently, the Board consists of three (3) Executive Directors
and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The present
board composition reflects strong element of independence
structurally with non-executive members and Independent
Directors constituting half of the Board composition,.
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and Managing
Director continue to be separated and the Chairman of
the Board is an independent director. The Board had also
identified the Chairman of the Board, Dato’ Abdul Latif to act
as the Senior Independent Director for shareholders to convey
their concerns to and seek clarifications from the Board.
In order to uphold independence of Independent Directors,
the Board has adopted and applied the following policies:-

During the financial year, the Board has reviewed the
independence of the Independent Directors, Dato’ Abdul
Latif and Mr. Ho Hin Choy who have served the Board for
more than nine (9) years and is satisfied that they are able to
exercise their objectivity and independence in the interest of
the shareholder at large. The resolution for the continuance
of Dato’ Abdul Latif and Mr. Ho Hin Choy as Independent
Directors of the Board was proposed in the AGM and
subsequently approved by the shareholders during the AGM.
Supply of Information
The Board members in their individual capacity have
unrestricted access to complete information in the form
and quality necessary for the discharge of their duties and
responsibilities. Prior to each Board meeting, all Board
members are furnished with the relevant documents and
sufficient information to enable them to obtain comprehensive
understanding of the issues to be deliberated during the
meetings.

i.

Subject to Board justification and shareholders’ approval,
tenure of Independent Directors should not exceed a
cumulative nine (9) years; and

External independent professional advisers are also made
available to render their independent views and advice to
the Board, whenever deemed necessary and in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

ii.

Annual assessment of independence of its Independent
Directors focusing on events that would affect the ability of
Independent Directors to continue bringing independent
and objective judgment to board deliberation and the
regulatory definition of Independent Directors.

The Directors also have access to the advices and services of
the Company Secretaries, who are responsible in ensuring that
Board meeting procedures are followed and that applicable
rules and regulations are complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Appointments and Election of Board Members

ii)

NRC, is entrusted with the responsibility to recommend
candidates for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees and assessing the effectiveness of the Board,
Audit Committee and the individual directors in accordance
with the best practices of the Code.

iii)

The Board acknowledges the important of gender diversity in
the board composition and through its NRC ensures that women
candidates are sought when considering future candidate for
vacancy at the Board. With the recommendation of the NRC,
the Board appoints its members through a process, which is
consistent with the Articles of Association of the Company.
The Company Secretaries ensure that all appointments are
properly made and that legal and regulatory obligations are
met.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
all Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject to
election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting
after their appointment. The Articles also provide that at least
one-third (1/3) of the remaining Directors are required to
submit themselves for re-election by rotation at each Annual
General Meeting.
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company are detailed in the notice of
the 12th Annual General Meeting.
Two (2) meetings were held during the financial period by the
NRC. In line with the Best Practices, the appraisals of individual
director, Board Committees and the Board were documented.
The activities undertaken by the NRC during the financial year
were as follows:reviewed the required mix of skills, experience and other
qualities of the Board, including core competencies which
Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board;

i)
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iv)
v)
vi)

assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the
Committees of the Board and the contribution of each
individual Director including his/her time commitment,
character, experience and integrity;
recommended the Directors who retire in accordance
with Article 120 of Company’s Articles of Association to
the Board for re-election in the 11th AGM held on 26 June
2014;
assessed the independence of its independent directors,
particularly for those independent directors who had
served for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years;
reviewed the Directors’ training for the financial year; and
reviewed the remuneration of the executive directors.

Board Commitment
The underlying factors of Directors’ commitment to the Group
are devotion of time and continuous improvement of knowledge
and skill sets.
The Board meets at least every quarter and on other occasions,
as and when necessary, to inter-alia review and approve
quarterly financial results, statutory financial statements, the
Annual Report, business ventures as well as to review the
performance of the company and its operating subsidiaries,
governance matters and other business development matters.
Board papers are circulated to the Board members prior to the
Board meetings so as to provide the Directors with relevant and
timely information to enable them to have proper deliberation
on issues raised during Board meetings.
During the financial year, five (5) Board meetings were held.
The details of attendance of the members are shown on page
9 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Directors’ Training
The Board acknowledges that continuous training is essential
for the Directors to be equipped to effectively discharge their
duties. The trainings attended by Directors during the financial
year are as below:
Director

Training Attended

Dato’ Abdul Latif
bin Abdullah

1. In-house Corporate Training
Programme
“Role
&
Responsibilities of Directors
Under the Listing Requirements”
and “Updates on Corporate
Governance Guide - 2nd Edition”

Vincent Cheah
Chee Kong

1. Market Outlook Seminar
2. Market Outlook Seminar
3. Malaysia Goods and Services Tax
(GST) Awareness Programme

Victor Cheah
Chee Wai

1. 2014 PRISM International Annual
Meeting
2. Malaysia Goods and Services Tax
(GST) Awareness Programme

Esther
Soon Yoke Leng

1. Board Chairman Series - The
Role of the Chairman
2. GST Conference & Workshop
2014
3. Corporate
Governance
Statement Reporting Workshop
4. CEO Forum 2014 – Malaysia:
Surviving The Next Global
Financial Crisis
5. Malaysia Goods and Services Tax
(GST) Awareness Programme

Director

Training Attended

Voong Kian Yee

1. Malaysia Goods and Services Tax
(GST) Awareness Programme
2. 2015 Budget Seminar

Ho Hin Choy

1. Investment Talk 2014
2. Product Centric Workshop
3. State of the Economy and What it
Means for the Stock Market
4. AMLATFA 2001 - The Law &
Policy From A Capital Market
Perspective
5. Advocacy Sessions On Corporate
Disclosure For Directors
6. Goods & Services Tax (GST)
Knowledge Sharing Session
7. Phillip Capital 5th Annual
Investment Conference 2014
8. Gold & Precious Metals - Price
Outlook Symposium 2014

The Directors will continue to attend relevant training
programmes to further enhance their skills and knowledge
as well as to keep abreast with new developments for the
furtherance of their duties.
Directors’ Remuneration
The Board recognised the importance of having remuneration
framework for Directors as well as the remuneration packages
of the Executive Directors, which should be structured to link
rewards to corporate and individual performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

The NRC considers and applies the principles recommended
by the Code in determining the directors’ remuneration.
Executive Directors are remunerated based on the Group’s
performance, market conditions and their responsibilities
whilst the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is
determined in accordance with their experience and the level
of responsibilities assumed.
The details of Directors’ remuneration for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

NonExecutive
Director
(RM

			
		
Executive
		
Director
(RM)
Salaries and other emoluments 1,411,820
Fees		
Bonus		
79,900
Benefit in kind

52,000
-

Total		

52,000

1,491,720

The remuneration of the Directors are summarised in bands of
RM50,000.00 for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

		
Number of Directors
Range of Remuneration		
Non			
Executive
Executive
Below RM50,000		
RM200,001 to RM250,000
RM400,001 to RM450,000
RM600,001 to RM700,000

16
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Financial Reporting
The Board is responsible to ensure the financial statements
of the Company presents a fair and balance view and
assessment of the Group’s financial position, performance
and prospects and such financial statements are drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1965
and applicable approved accounting standards. The Board
is assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing the accuracy,
adequacy and completeness of disclosure and ensuring the
Group’s financial statements comply with applicable financial
reporting standards.
As part of the Audit Committee review processes, the Audit
Committee has obtained written assurance from the External
Auditors confirming that they are, and have been, independent
throughout the conduct of the audit engagement in accordance
with the terms of all relevant professional and regulatory
requirements
Annually, the Audit Committee also reviews the appointment,
performance and remuneration of the External Auditors before
recommending them to the shareholders for re-appointment
in the AGM. The Audit Committee would convene meeting
with the External Auditors and Internal Auditors without the
presence of the Executive Directors and employees of the
Group as and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

Risk Management
The Board acknowledges that risk management is an integral
part of good management practices. Risk is inherent in all
business activities. It is, however, not the Group’s objective to
eliminate risk totally, but to provide structural means to identify,
prioritize and manage the risks involved in all the Group’s
activities and to balance between the cost of managing and
treating risks, and the anticipated benefits that will be derived.
In order to formalise the present risk management and internal
control systems in the Group, the Board has defined its Group’s
Risk policy.
The Board has established an internal audit function which
is currently outsourced to a professional firm. Functionally,
the Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee directly
and they are responsible for conducting regular reviews
and appraisals of the effectiveness of the governance, risk
management and internal controls and processes within the
Group. Further details of the Group’s state of risk management
and internal control systems are reported in the Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 19 to 20.

Corporate Disclosure
Corporate information is important for investors and
shareholders. The Board is advised by the management, the
Company Secretary and the External and Internal Auditors
on the contents and timing of disclosure requirements of the
Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements on the financial results
and various announcements.

Besides ensuring timely releases of quarterly financial results,
circulars, annual reports, corporate announcement and press
releases on Bursa’s website, the Board leverages on its
corporate website to communicate, disseminate and provide
further information and details on the governance reporting.
Further, pursuant to Para 9.25 of the Listing Requirements,
publication of those static and principal governance information
such as charter and board committees’ terms of reference are
transferred from annual report to the Company’s website in
order to reduce dilution of impact of issues discussed in the
annual report.

Sustainability
Based on the business, industry, and regulatory environment
in which the Group’s businesses operate in, the Executive
Directors and management require its business units comply
with statutory regulations on safety and health and ensure
environmentally friendly practices in the Group.

Shareholders’ Right
The Board strongly encourages all shareholders to participate
in the general meeting. Shareholders are advised that general
meeting enable them to exercise their rights. During general
meeting, shareholders may raise questions for each proposed
resolution and on matters relating to the Group’s businesses
and affairs. Members of the Board members are present in the
general meetings to respond to shareholders’ queries.
Shareholders have the right to demand a poll vote at general
meetings and poll voting is mandated for related party
transactions that require shareholders’ approval.
The Board would respond to meetings with institutional
shareholders, analysts and members of the press to convey
information regarding the Group’s performance and strategic
direction as and when requested.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that:
I.

The annual audited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company are drawn up in accordance with
the approved accounting standards in Malaysia, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the Main
Market Listing Requirements so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
for the financial year and of the results and cash flows of
the Group and of the Company for the financial year, and

II.

Proper accounting and other records are kept which
enable the preparation of the financial statements with
reasonable accuracy and taking reasonable steps to
ensure that appropriate systems are in place to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

In the preparation of the financial statements for the financial
year ended 31st December 2014, the Directors have adopted
appropriate accounting policies and have applied them
consistently in the financial statement with reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates. The Directors are also
satisfied that the statements are prepared on a going concern
basis as the Directors have a reasonable expectation, having
made enquiries, that the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to continue operations for the foreseeable
future and all relevant approved accounting standards have
been followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

18
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

This Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control is
made pursuant to Paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Main Market
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Bursa Securities”) with regard to the disclosure of the Group’s
state of risk management and internal control. In making this
Statement, the Board is guided by the latest “Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control – Guideline for Directors of
Listed Issuers” issued by the Task Force on Internal Control
with the support and endorsement of the Bursa Securities.
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board understands the principal risks of the business that
the Group is engaged in and uses the following key controls,
review mechanism and information to derive its comfort of the
state of risk management and internal control in the Group.
(i)

(ii)

Board discussions with management during the board
meetings on business ventures and operational issues as
well as the measures taken by management to mitigate
and manage risks associated with the business and
operation issues;
Delegation and separation of responsibilities between
the Board and management. The Executive Directors
report to the Board on the performance of the operations
and its management while the Board scrutinizes the
management performance to ensure its effectiveness and
objectivity;

(iii) Management organisation structure aligning to business
and operational functions. Each strategic function is
headed by a head of department with defined lines of
accountability and responsibility as well as approval and
authorization limits;

(v)

The Audit Committee reviews in consultation with the
management, the unaudited quarterly financial results
and monitors the Group’s progress towards achieving the
Group’s objectives;

(vi) The presence of internal audit function to assist the Audit
Committee and the Board in conducting independent
assessment on the internal control systems and the
governance practices. The Internal Auditors undertake
their periodic reviews in accordance with the audit plan
and scope approved by the Audit Committee;
(vii) Annual audit by certification body to ensure compliance
with the requirements of ISO 9001 Quality Management
System and ISO 27001 Information Security Management
System. These certifications serve as an assurance to
customers of the delivery of quality products and services
by the Group and the effectiveness of information security
management;
(viii) Management assurance that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems have been operating
adequately and effectively, in all material respects;
(ix) Director representations on the boards of the companies
in which the Group has investment; and
(x)

The internal and external physical security controls
installed within the premises to prevent unauthorized
access to the building and customers’ details and
information.

(iv) The Group’s management carries out regular monitoring
and review of financial results for all businesses and
the operational and financial performance of the Group.
Action plans are formulated to address areas of concern;

Annual Report 2014
Efficient E-Solutions Berhad

19

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND ASSURANCE

REVIEW BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Management is responsible to the Board for identifying risks
relevant to the business, implementing and maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal control and
monitoring and reporting to the Board of significant control
deficiencies and risks that could significantly affect the Group’s
performance. In making this Statement, Group Managing
Director and Group Finance Manager have represented to
the Board that, to the best of their knowledge the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are operating
adequately and effectively, in all material aspects.

The External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control for inclusion in this annual
report and have reported to the Board that nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement is
inconsistent with their understanding of the process the Board
and management have adopted in the review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group.

BOARD ASSURANCE AND LIMITATION
The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by
the Group. For the financial year under review, the Board is
satisfied that the existing level of systems of risk management
and internal control of the Group (excluding associated
companies which the Board have control over their operations)
are effective to enable the Group to achieve its business
objectives and there were no material losses resulted from
significant control weaknesses that would require additional
disclosure in the Annual Report.
The Board recognises that the systems of risk management
and internal control should be continuously improved in line with
the evolving business development. Nonetheless, it should
be noted that all risk management systems and systems of
internal control could only manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure to achieve business objectives. Therefore, these
systems of risk management and internal control in the Group
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatements, frauds and losses.

20
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Additional Compliance Information

Disclosure pursuant to Paragraph 9.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

(i)

Share Buy-Back
During the financial year, there were no share buy-back
by the Company.

(ii) Utilisation of Proceeds
There were no fund raising exercises implemented during
the financial year.
(iii) Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
Save for the options granted, exercised and lapsed as
disclosed in the Directors’ Report of Financial Statements,
the Company did not issue any options, warrants or
convertible securities during the financial year.
(iv) American Depository Receipt (“ADR”) or Global
Depository Receipt (“GDR”)
During the financial year, the Company and its subsidiaries
did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme.
(v) Sanctions and/ or Penalties
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the
Company and its subsidiaries, directors or management
by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

(vii) Variance in Results
There was no significant variation between the audited
results for the financial year and unaudited results
previously announced.
(viii) Profit Guarantee
The Company and its subsidiaries did not give any profit
guarantee during the financial year.
(ix) Material Contracts
There were no material contracts including loans (not being
contract entered into the ordinary course of business) of
the Company and its subsidiaries, involving Directors’
and major shareholders’ interests, which subsisted at the
end of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 or,
if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of the
previous financial year.
(x) Recurrent Related Party Transactions (“RRPT”) of
Revenue Nature
During the financial year, there was no RRPT of Revenue
Nature.

(vi) Non-Audit Fees
There was no non-audit fee paid by the Company to
external auditors or company affiliated to the external
auditor’s firm for the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
Principal activity
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note
10 to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial
year.
Results
								
								
Profit for the financial year 				

Group
RM

Company
RM

5,610,345

22,222,185

Reserves and provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed in the
financial statements.
Dividends
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid an interim tax exempt dividend of 2% per ordinary share totaling
RM1,418,260 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013, on 28 March 2014.
The Directors do not recommend any dividend payment in respect of the current financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

Directors
The Directors who have held office since the date of the last report are:
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah
Cheah Chee Kong
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Soon Yoke Leng
Ho Hin Choy
Voong Kian Yee
Ng Hin Lee
- Resigned on 31 July 2014
Directors’ interests in shares
The shareholdings in the Company and related corporations of those who were Directors at the end of the financial year, as
recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia, are as follows:
							Number of ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each
						
Balance as at			
Balance as at
The Company			
1.1.2014
Bought
Sold
31.12.2014
Direct interest			
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah		
Cheah Chee Kong			
Victor Cheah Chee Wai		
Soon Yoke Leng			

3,756,000
9,734,500
6,000,000
6,000,000

Indirect Interest				
Cheah Chee Kong			
213,995,000
Victor Cheah Chee Wai		
213,995,000
Soon Yoke Leng			
106,200,000

-

(1,256,000)
(2,500,000)
-

2,500,000
9,734,500
6,000,000
3,500,000
213,995,000
213,995,000
106,200,000

By virtue of Cheah Chee Kong’s, Victor Cheah Chee Wai’s and Soon Yoke Leng’s interest in the shares of the Company, Cheah
Chee Kong, Victor Cheah Chee Wai and Soon Yoke Leng are also deemed to be interested in the shares of all the related
corporations to the extent the Company has an interest.
None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company and
related corporations during the financial year, according to the register required to be kept under Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

Directors’ benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as shown
in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm
of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest except for those
disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during or at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
Issue of shares and debentures
There were no changes in the authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year.
There were no debentures issued during the financial year.
Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take up unissued shares of the Company.
Other statutory information
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain
that:
(i)

proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and
have satisfied themselves that all known bad debts have been written off and that provisions need not be made for doubtful
debts; and

(ii)

all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

which would render the amount written off for bad debts inadequate to any material extent or necessitate the making of
provision for doubtful debts; or
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

(ii)

which would render the value attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading; or

(iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the
Company misleading or inappropriate; or
(iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the
ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2014 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has
any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.
Significant event after the reporting period
Details of significant event after reporting period are disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

Auditors
The auditors, Messrs PKF, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

On behalf of the Board,
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

__________________________________________
CHEAH CHEE KONG

			

__________________________________________
VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI

Selangor		
Dated : 23 April 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965 IN MALAYSIA
In the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 9 to 79 are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
The supplementary information as set out in Note 37 to the financial statements is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with MIA Guidance and the directive
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

__________________________________________
CHEAH CHEE KONG

__________________________________________
VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI
Selangor		
23 April 2015
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965 IN MALAYSIA
I, THAM KWANG SIAH, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS
BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief the accompanying financial statements
are correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of
the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960 in Malaysia.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named
at Kuala Lumpur in Wilayah Persekutuan on 23 April 2015

}
}

__________________________________________
THAM KWANG SIAH
Before me,

__________________________________________
COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (632479 H)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD, which comprise the Statements
of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014 of the Group and of the Company, the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages
9 to 79.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2014 and of their financial performance and their cash
flows for the financial year then ended.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (cont’d)
TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (632479 H)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia to be
kept by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
(c)

The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification or any adverse comment
made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBITIES
The supplementary information set out in Note 37 to the financial statements is disclosed to meet the requirements of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance
with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA
Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.
The comparative figures were audited by another firm of auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
29 April 2014.
YONG CHUNG SIN
PKF								
				
AF 0911
2892/04/16(J)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS			
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
Kuala Lumpur
23 April 2015
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
		
					
Note
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Revenue				
3
Cost of sales				

46,055,760
(30,235,611)

44,858,981
(30,173,102)

23,068,003
-

Gross profit				
Other operating income		
Administrative and operating expenses		

15,820,149
2,490,808
(11,123,578)

14,685,879
2,273,101
(10,764,760)

23,068,003
1,135,190
(1,848,618)

73,546
1,200,231
(249,282)

7,187,379
(235,592)
668,803

6,194,220
(302,732)
476,746

22,354,575
-

1,024,495
-

Profit before taxation		 7,620,590
Tax expenses			
7
(2,010,245)

6,368,234
(1,508,340)

22,354,575
(132,390)

1,024,495
(136,140)

22,222,185

888,355

4
Profit from operations
Finance costs			
6
Share of profit of associates, net of tax		

Profit for the financial year		 5,610,345

4,859,894

73,546
-

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:							
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss							
Fair value of available-for-sale financial asset		

122,098

Profit and other comprehensive
income for the financial year		

5,732,443

Basic average earnings attributable to owners
of the Company per ordinary share (sen)

8

0.79

123,377
4,983,271

122,098

123,377

22,344,283

1,011,732

0.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

		
					
Note
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment properties
Investment in associates
Other investments		
Software development expenditure
Goodwill on consolidation

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

35,404,558
12,727,456
4,677,966
150,000
1,582,719

35,445,611
4,009,163
150,000
210,772
1,585,252

768,970
23,130,123
2,100,000
-

201,750
9,100,006
2,100,000
-

						 54,542,699

41,400,798

25,999,093

11,401,756

1,763,124
15,933,476

1,737,517
20,493,830

-

-

10,086,706
266,328
18,513,442
24,327,990
9,539,712

3,868,698
8,031
12,111,428
42,970,100
9,115,297

4,753,265
39,863,747
33,375
18,513,442
13,138,339
102,903

3,421
35,197,139
9,885,166
24,899,799
104,262

						 80,430,778

90,304,901

76,405,071

70,089,787

102,404,164

81,491,543

Current assets
Inventories			
16
Trade receivables 		
17
Non-trade receivables, deposits
and prepayments		
18
Amount due from subsidiaries
19
Tax recoverable			
Investment securities
20
Deposits with licensed banks
21
Cash and bank balances		

TOTAL ASSETS 			

134,973,477

131,705,699

					
Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital			
22
Share premium		
23
Available-for-sale reserve		
Retained earnings		
24

2013

2012

70,913,010
4,633,588
245,475
49,769,600

70,913,010
4,633,588
123,377
45,577,515

70,913,010
4,633,588
245,475
26,527,526

70,913,010
4,633,588
123,377
5,723,601

TOTAL EQUITY			 125,561,673

121,247,490

102,319,599

81,393,576

2013

20

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

						
					
Note
						
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings			
Deferred tax liabilities

25
26

2014
RM

GROUP

2013
RM

2014
RM

COMPANY

2013
RM

1,830,860
1,684,347

2,986,437
2,007,361

8,805

11,250

						

3,515,207

4,993,798

8,805

11,250

Current liabilities
Trade payables		
27
Non-trade payables and accruals
28
Borrowings			
25
Tax payable				

1,891,590
2,497,818
1,157,469
349,720

1,953,442
2,069,958
1,085,259
355,752

75,760
-

43,465
43,252

						

5,896,597

5,464,411

75,760

86,717

TOTAL LIABILITIES 		9,411,804

10,458,209

84,565

97,967

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 		134,973,477

131,705,699

102,404,164

81,491,543

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

							

Non-distributable			Distributable

				
		
Share
Share
		
capital
premium

Fair value
reserve

Share
option
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total

81
(81)
-

40,717,540
81
4,859,894

116,264,219
4,859,894

-

123,377

At 31 December 2012		
Share option reserve 		
Profit for the financial year		
Fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset			

70,913,010
-

4,633,588
-

-

-

-

123,377

-

At 31 December 2013		
Dividend				
29
Profit for the financial year		
Fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset			

70,913,010
-

4,633,588
-

123,377
-

-

-

-

122,098

-

At 31 December 2014		

70,913,010

4,633,588

245,475

-

45,577,515 121,247,490
(1,418,260) (1,418,260)
5,610,345
5,610,345
-

122,098

49,769,600 125,561,673

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

							

Non-distributable			Distributable

				
		
Share
Share
		
capital
premium
Company
At 31 December 2012		
Share option reserve 		
Profit for the financial year		
Fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset			

Fair value
reserve

Share
option
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total

81
(81)
-

4,835,165
81
888,355

80,381,844
888,355

-

123,377

70,913,010
-

4,633,588
-

-

-

-

123,377

-

At 31 December 2013		
29
Dividend				
Profit for the financial year		
Fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset			

70,913,010
-

4,633,588
-

123,377
-

-

-

-

122,098

-

At 31 December 2014		

70,913,010

4,633,588

245,475

-

5,723,601
(1,418,260)
22,222,185
-
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122,098

26,527,526 102,319,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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81,393,576
(1,418,260)
22,222,185

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Cash flows from operating activities
7,620,590
6,368,234
22,354,575
1,024,495
Profit before tax			
Adjustments for:							
Amortisation of software development expenditure
210,772
105,537
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment		
2,985,944
3,583,098
29,180
24,210
Fair value loss/(gain) on FVTPL financial assets		
191,953
(271,017)
191,953
(271,017)
479,920
4,970
Property, plant and equipment written off		
Gain on disposal of investment linked funds		
(226,902)
(94,433)
(226,902)
(94,433)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment				
34,947
(29,776)
Dividend income			
(68,003)
(73,546)
(23,068,003)
(73,546)
Interest income			
(1,035,140)
(1,105,689)
(702,923)
(669,994)
Interest expenses			
235,592
302,732
Investment income from investment securities		
(262,080)
(221,542)
(205,365)
(164,787)
Share of results of associated companies		
(668,803)
(476,746)
Debt assignment - waiver		
1,390,000
Goodwill written off			
2,533
Inventories written down		
40,134
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes		
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories		
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables		
Increase/(Decrease) in payables		
Increase/(Decrease) in amount due from subsidiaries

9,541,457
(65,742)
(1,657,656)
366,008
-

Cash generated from/(used in) operations		
8,184,067
Tax paid, net of tax refunded		
(2,597,589)
Dividends paid				(1,418,260)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 		

4,168,218

8,091,822
375,245
480,774
438,533
-

(237,485)
(4,749,844)
32,294
(6,056,608)

(225,072)
23
20,893
(254,545)

9,386,374
(1,580,294)
-

(11,011,643)
(211,461)
(1,418,260)

(458,701)
(192,419)
-

7,806,080

(12,641,364)

(651,120)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investment in subsidiaries		
Deemed investments – capital contributions		
Dividend income			
68,003
Net changes of fixed deposits pledged		
(2,141)
Interest from deposits with licensed banks		
1,035,140
Increase in investment securities		
(10,054,880)
Investment income			262,080
Proceeds from disposal of investment
with fund management company		
3,809,914
Proceeds from disposal property,
plant and equipment		
228,500
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 		
(3,688,257)
Purchase of investment properties		
(12,727,456)

2013
RM
73,546
(2,119)
1,105,689
(3,785,502)
221,542

2014
RM

(1,000,002)
(13,030,115)
23,068,003
702,923
(8,471,229)
205,365

3,500,000
29,776
(1,724,269)
-

Company

(596,400)
-

2013
RM

(4)
73,546
669,994
(3,728,747)
164,787
3,500,000
-

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 		

(21,069,097)

(581,337)

878,545

679,576

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of term loans		
Interest paid				

(1,083,367)
(235,592)

(1,013,896)
(302,732)

-

-

Net cash used in financing activities		(1,318,959)

(1,316,628)

-

-

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents		(18,219,838)
5,908,115
(11,762,819)
								
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January		52,017,627
46,109,512
25,004,061

24,975,605

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

28,456

(i)

33,797,789

52,017,627

13,241,242

25,004,061

Deposits with licensed banks
21
Cash and bank balances		

24,327,990
9,539,712

42,970,100
9,115,297

13,138,339
102,903

24,899,799
104,262

						 33,867,702

52,085,397

13,241,242

25,004,061

-

-

13,241,242

25,004,061

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following:

Less: Fixed deposits pledged with
licensed banks		

21

(69,913)

						 33,797,789

(67,770)
52,017,627

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Group and the Company will continue as
going concern which contemplates the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.
(a) Standards issued and effective
On 1 January 2014, the following new and amended MFRSs and IC Interpretations are mandatory for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

									
Effective for
									 financial period
			Description					 beginning on or
									 after
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities
Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities: Investment
Entities
Amendments to MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements : Investment Entities
Amendments to MFRS 132, Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to MFRS 136, Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
– Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
IC Interpretation 21 Levies

1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

The Directors expect that the adoption of the new and amended MFRSs and IC Interpretations above will not have any
material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(b) Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group and the Company have not adopted the following amendments and IC Interpretations that have been issued
but not yet effective:
									
Effective for
									 financial period
			Description					 beginning on or
									 after
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

40

Amendments to MFRS 119: Defined benefit plans: Employee Contributions
Annual improvements to MFRSs 2010 – 2012 cycle:
MFRS 2, Share-based payment
MFRS 3, Business combinations
MFRS 8, Operating Segments
MFRS 116, Property, plant and equipment
MFRS 124, Related party disclosures
MFRS 138, Intangible assets
Annual improvements to MFRSs 2011 – 2013 cycle, amendments to
MFRS 3, Business combinations
MFRS 13, Fair value measurement
MFRS 140, Investment property
MFRS 141, Agriculture : Bearer Plants
MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment Entities – Applying
the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint
Operations
Amendments to MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities:
Investment Entities – Applying the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment: Agriculture : Bearer Plants
Amendments to MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to MFRS 128, Investment in Associates: Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(b) Standards issued but not yet effective

									
Effective for
									 financial period
			Description					 beginning on or
									 after
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Amendments to MFRS 128, Investment in Associates: Investment Entities – Applying
the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to MFRS 138, Intangible Assets: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendment to MFRS 141, Agriculture : Bearer Plant
MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Annual improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 cycle, amendments to
MFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued operations
MFRS 7, Financial Instruments : Disclosures
MFRS 119, Employee Benefits
MFRS 134, Interim Financial Reporting
MFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers
MFRS 9, Financial Instruments

1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2016
1 January 2017
1 January 2018

The initial adoption of the accounting standards, amendments or IC Interpretations above will have no material impacts
on the financial statements of the Group and the Company except as mentioned below:
MRFS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
MRFS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111, Construction Contracts, MFRS 118, Revenue, IC Interpretation 13,
Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, IC Interpretation 18,
Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. Upon adoption of MFRS 15, it is expected that the timing of revenue recognition might different as compared
with the current practices.
(c) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in Notes 2 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the Directors and management and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the Group’s and of the Company’s accounting
policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:
(i)

Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different from
the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and
estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(ii)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Software development expenditure
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and
equipment are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.
The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will be insignificant. As a result,
residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives
and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

(iii)

Impairment of Non-financial Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value in use of the cash
generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the
present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
(iv) Allowance for Inventories
Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow moving inventories. These
reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the
valuation of inventories.
(v)

Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using
verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation
methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and/or equity.

(vi) Impairment of Trade and Non-trade Receivables
An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. Management
specifically reviews its loan and receivables financial assets and analyses historical bad debts, customer
concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in the customer payment
terms when making a judgment to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Where there is
objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical
loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. If the expectation is different from the estimation,
such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables.
(vii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax rates are measured with reference to
the estimated realisation and settlement of temporary differences in the future periods in which the tax rates are
expected to apply, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statements of financial position
date. While management’s estimates on the realisation and settlement of temporary differences are based on the
available information at the statements of financial position date, changes in business strategy, future operating
performance and other factors could potentially impact on the actual timing and amount of temporary differences
realised and settled. Any difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which actual realisation and settlement occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
(viii) Provision for liabilities
Provision for liabilities are based on management’s judgement on the likelihood of liabilities crystalising and best
estimates on the amounts required to settle the liabilities arising from legal and constructive obligations. A change
in circumstances which could cause estimates to change include changes in market trends and conditions,
regulatory environment, employees’ behaviours and other factors that may change the amount of provisions in
the statement of financial position. The difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the change occurs.
(ix) Impairment of goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This requires management
to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash generating unit to which goodwill is allocated and to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most
sensitive to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the expectation is different
from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value of goodwill.
(x) Classification between investment properties and owner occupied properties
		
The Group determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and have developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group consider whether a property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets
held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group account for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiary
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group considers it has de-facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting
rights, it has the current ability in circumstances where the size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect
the investee’s return. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are
substantive.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method on the acquisition date. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of assets transferred, equity interest issued by the Group and liabilities assumed.
Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(ii)

Accounting for business combinations
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at the reporting date. A subsidiary is consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continues to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2011
For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2011, the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
a
a
a
a

The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree;
less
The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Cost related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.
When share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the
acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the
acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination.
This determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based
value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and / or future service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(ii)

Accounting for business combinations (cont’d)
Acquisitions before 1 January 2011
As part of its transition to MFRS, the Group elected not to restate those business combinations that occurred
before the date of transition to MFRSs, i.e. 1 January 2011. Goodwill arising from acquisitions before 1 January
2011 has been carried forward from the previous FRS framework as at the date of transition.
a

Acquisitions between 1 January 2006 to 1 January 2011
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Adjustments to those fair values relating to
previously held interests are treated as a revaluation and recognised in other comprehensive income.
The cost of a business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination.

Any excess of the cost of business combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired
subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the statement of
financial position. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income in profit
or loss on the date of acquisition.
a

Acquisitions between 1 January 2006 to 1 January 2011
When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the
acquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination results in a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

(iii) Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly
or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit and loss and the other comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(iii) Non-controlling interests (cont’d)
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even
if doing so caused the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
(iv) Transactions with Non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby,
transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners.
On acquisition of non-controlling interest, the difference between the consideration and the Group’s share of
the net assets acquired is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to non-controlling interests is
recognised directly in equity.
(v)

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising
on the loss of control is recognised in the profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary,
then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as
equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

(vi) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted associates are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates and jointly controlled entities. Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(vii) Associate
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which the group has significant influence.
An associate is equity accounted for from the date the group obtains significant influence until the date the group
ceases to have significant influence over the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(vii) Associate (cont’d)
The group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in associates is measured in the Statements Of Financial Position at cost plus post acquisition changes
in the group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill relating to associates is included in the carrying
amount of the investments. Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value of the associates identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the investments is excluded from the carrying amount
of the investments and is instead included as income in the determination of the group’s share of the associates
profit or loss for the period in in which the investment is acquired.
(b) Foreign currencies
(i)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of the Group and of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which are the Group’s and the Company’s functional currency.

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Group and of the
Company and its subsidiaries are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the reporting
date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of
the Group’s and of the Company’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency
translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group and of the Company on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currencies (cont’d)
(ii)

Foreign currency transactions (cont’d)
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items
are also recognised directly in equity.
The principal exchange rates for every unit of foreign currency ruling used at reporting date used are as follows:

						
						

2014
RM

2013
RM

1 United States Dollar				

3.49

3.29

(c) Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i)

Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and provisions, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be reliably
estimated, and there is no continuing measurement involvement with the goods.
Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(ii)

Revenue from services
Revenue from services provided is recognised net of service tax and discount, where applicable, as and when the
services are performed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c) Revenue (cont’d)
(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
(iv) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of lease.
(v)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on effective yield on the investment.

(d) Employee benefits expense
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the financial year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and of the Company. Short term
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii)

Defined contribution plans
The Group’s and the Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the
period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Company has no further
liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

(e) Borrowing costs
All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs.
Finance costs comprise interest paid and payable on borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(f)

Tax expense
(i)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise from
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(f)

Tax expense (cont’d)
(ii)

Deferred tax (cont’d)
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the business combination.

(g) Impairment
(i)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired.
Trade and non-trade receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred,
the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The
amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(g) Impairment (cont’d)
(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group and the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the
Group and the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss
unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(h) Property, plant and equipment		
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the Group and the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore not depreciated.
Work in progress under construction is not subject to depreciation.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight line basis, at the following annual rates:
%

									

Buildings						 2
Computer equipment 					
10 - 40
Office equipment					
10 - 20
Electrical fittings					
20
Furniture and fittings 					
10 - 20
Machinery					 10
Motor vehicles					 10
Renovation					
10 - 20
Signboard					 10
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
		
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.
(i)

Investment properties
Investment properties, which are properties held to earn rentals and/ or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes), are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore not depreciated.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit of loss in the year of
retirement or disposal.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for prospectively.

(j)

Intangible assets
(i)

Goodwill on consolidation
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the
Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
cash generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(j)

		

Intangible assets (cont’d)
(i)

Goodwill on consolidation (cont’d)
Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that cash generating unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash generating
unit retained.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operation on or after 1 January 2006 are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign
operations and translated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(b) to the financial statements.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments which arose on acquisitions of foreign operation before 1 January 2006 are
deemed to be assets and liabilities of the Company and are recorded in RM at the rates prevailing at the date of
acquisition.

		

(ii)

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition, intangible assets are measured at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in
profit or loss.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with and indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(j)

		

Intangible assets (cont’d)
(ii)

Other intangible assets (cont’d)
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

(k) Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the Statements Of Financial Position when, and only when, the Group and the
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and the categories
include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated as such upon initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
without any deduction for transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. Changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial assets
that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not held
primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the settlement date.

(ii)

Loans and receivables
Financial assets that are non-derivative with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(k) Financial assets (cont’d)
(ii)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”)
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
in any of the three preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when
the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the Group
and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
impairment loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting date.
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group and the
Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(l)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in-first-out method. Costs of raw materiales inventories comprise the cost of purchase plus
the cost of bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of finished goods comprise costs of raw materials, direct labour and an attributable proportion of production
overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, short term and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
(n) Financial liabilities
(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Group and the Company that do not meet
the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently stated at
fair value, with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on derivatives include
exchange differences.
The Group and the Company have not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii)

Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade and non-trade payables.
Trade and non-trade payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(n) Financial liabilities (cont’d)
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
(o) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate if it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision will be
reversed. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability and the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation.
(p) Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which
they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(q) Operating segments
For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services. The
management of the Company regularly reviews the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and
to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in the Note 31 to
the financial statements, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of
segment information.
(r)

Contingencies
A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the
Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group.

3.

Revenue
The revenue of the Group and of the Company consists of the following:

		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Services rendered less discounts		
45,987,757
44,785,435
Dividend income from:						
Subsidiary		
23,000,000
Other investments		
68,003
73,546
68,003
73,546
						 46,055,760
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

4.

Profit from operations

		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Profit from operations						
arrived at after charging/(crediting):						
Auditors’ remuneration:						
- current				
73,000
56,450
22,000
19,000
- under/(over) provision in prior year		
2,400
368
(900)
Amortisation of software development expenditure
210,772
105,537
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
2,985,944
3,583,098
29,180
24,120
Directors’ remuneration:						
- salaries and other emoluments		
1,312,000
1,192,000
52,000
52,000
- defined contributions plan and social
security cost		
151,820
137,420
Property, plant and equipment written off		
479,920
4,970
Profit from operations
arrived at after charging/(crediting):						
Rental of premises		
141,770
326,700
Rental of machineries		
898,800
934,500
Employee benefits (Note 5)		
9,971,452
9,714,783
Inventories written down		
40,135
Goodwill written off		
2,533
Debt assignment - waiver		
1,390,000
Distribution income from investment securities
(262,080)
(221,542)
(205,365)
(164,787)
Fair value loss/(gain) on FVTPL financial assets
191,953
(271,017)
191,953
(271,017)
Realised gain on foreign exchange		
(35,912)
(2,404)
Gain on disposal of investment linked funds		
(226,902)
(94,433)
(226,902)
(94,433)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment		
34,947
(29,776)
(73,546)
(73,546)
Dividend income		
(68,003)
(23,068,003)
Interest income		
(1,035,140)
(1,105,689)
(702,923)
(669,994)
Rental income			
(930,740)
(548,240)
-

Annual Report 2014
Efficient E-Solutions Berhad

63

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

5.

Employee benefits

			
								
								

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

Salaries and other emoluments				
Defined contribution plan				
Social security cost				

9,263,709
635,439
72,304

9,037,250
605,982
71,551

								

9,971,452

9,714,783

The total number of employees, inclusive of Executive Directors, of the Group at the end of the financial year is 265 (2013:
272).
6.

Finance costs

			
								
								
Term loan interest				
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2014
RM
235,592

Group

2013
RM
302,732

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

7.

Tax expenses

		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

Tax expenses						
- current 				
2,406,487
1,749,016
134,625
- (Over)/Under provision in prior year		
(73,228)
6,469
210

2013
RM
143,252
-

						 2,333,259
1,755,485
134,835
143,252
Deferred tax (Note 26)						
- current year			
(271,494)
(228,729)
5,888
11,250
- over provision in prior year		
(51,520)
(18,416)
(8,333)
(18,362)
						
						

(323,014)
2,010,245

(247,145)
1,508,340

(2,445)
132,390

(7,112)
136,140

Reconciliation of effective tax rates
		
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Profit before tax		

7,620,590

6,368,234

22,354,575

1,024,495

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate at 25% 		
Non-deductible expenses		
(Utilisation of deferred tax asset
not recognised)/Deferred tax asset
not recognised		
Share of profit of associates, net of tax		
Tax exempt income		

1,905,148
1,039,803

1,592,059
377,273

5,588,643
378,949

256,124
49,324

(5,827,079)

(150,946)

						

2,134,993

(Over)/Under provision of current tax in prior year
(Over)/Under provision of deferred tax in prior year
						

(82,362)
(167,201)
(560,395)

(73,228)
(51,520)
2,010,245

135,840
(119,187)
(465,698)
1,520,287
6,469
(18,416)
1,508,340

140,513
210
(8,333)
132,390

154,502
(18,362)
136,140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

8.

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent by
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

			
								
								
Profit attributable to owners of the parent				
Number of ordinary shares in issue				
Basic earnings per share (sen)				

2014
RM
5,610,345
709,130,100
0.79

There are no diluted earnings per share disclosed as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Group

2013
RM

4,859,894
709,130,100
0.69

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

9.

Property, plant and equipment
				
				
		
		
				
2014				

Freehold
Land
and
buildings
RM

Computer
and
office
equipment
RM

Electrical
and			 Renovation
furniture		
Motor
and
Construction
fittings Machinery
vehicle
signboard in progress
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

Group								
Cost 								
As at 1 January		
31,893,793 12,116,092
862,718 23,939,879 3,548,606 1,663,004
1,000,000
167,320
49,061
727,000
966,737
145,339
Additions			
Disposal			
- (6,392,470)
(37,156)
(701,444)
(870,061)

- 74,024,092
632,800 3,688,257
- (8,001,131)

As at 31 December

632,800 69,711,218

32,893,793

5,890,942

911,779 24,629,723

3,813,899

938,282

Accumulated depreciation								
As at 1 January 		
5,355,601 11,647,929
629,001 18,701,979 1,596,301
647,670
- 38,578,481
562,625
235,655
74,398 1,655,270
308,536
149,460
- 2,985,944
Charge for the year
Disposal			
- (6,392,470)
(29,251)
(445,903)
(390,141)
- (7,257,765)
As at 31 December

5,918,226

5,491,114

703,399 20,327,998

1,458,934

406,989

- 34,306,660

Carrying value								
As at 31 December
26,975,567
399,828
208,380 4,301,725 2,354,965
531,293
632,800 35,404,558
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

9.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
					
					
			
		
					
2013					

Freehold
Land
and
buildings
RM

Computer Electrical
and
and			 Renovation
office
furniture		
Motor
and
equipment fittings
Machinery
vehicle
signboard
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

Group								
Cost 								
As at 1 January 		 31,498,793 12,281,209
630,404 26,459,611 3,340,630
357,269
234,668
30,000
207,976
Additions				395,000
Disposal				
(522,386)
(2,354) (2,549,732)
-

1,168,841 75,379,488
499,356 1,724,269
(5,193) (3,079,665)

As at 31 December 		 31,893,793 12,116,092

1,663,004 74,024,092

862,718 23,939,879

3,548,606

Accumulated depreciation								
As at 1 January 			 4,534,141 11,745,598
559,866 19,533,198 1,273,636
423,638 38,070,077
423,994
322,665
225,727 3,583,098
71,277 1,717,975
Charge for the year		821,460
Disposal				
(521,663)
(2,142) (2,549,194)
(1,695) (3,074,694)
As at 31 December 		
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1,596,301

647,670 38,578,481

Carrying value							
As at 31 December		 26,538,192
468,163
233,717 5,237,900 1,952,305

1,015,334 35,445,611
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5,355,601 11,647,929

629,001 18,701,979

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

9.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

			
								
								
Motor vehicles

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

Motor vehicles
Cost
As at 1 January 				
Additions						

242,100
596,400

242,100
-

As at 31 December 				

838,500

242,100

Accumulated depreciation			
As at 1 January 				
Charge for the year				

40,350
29,180

16,140
24,210

As at 31 December 				

69,530

40,350

Carrying value			
As at 31 December 				

768,970

201,750

The carrying amounts of properties pledged as securities for borrowings as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements granted to the
subsidiary companies as follows:
			

			
								
								

Freehold land and building				
Freehold office lot				

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

25,364,355
1,224,112

24,889,934
1,253,257

								 26,588,467

26,143,191
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

10. Investment in subsidiaries
			
								
								

2014
RM

Unquoted shares, at cost
At 1 January					

Group

2013
RM

9,100,006

9,100,006

Additions						 1,000,002
Deemed investment – capital contribution				
13,030,115

-

								 14,030,117

-

At 31 December 				

23,010,123

9,100,006

All the subsidiary companies are incorporated in Malaysia and their details are as follows:
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Name of subsidiaries

Percentage
of
equity held
(%)
2013
2014

Efficient Mailcom Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Provision of integrated outsourcing solutions in data and document
processing, ranging from data extraction, to conversion, formatting of
documents, to data printing and preparation of printed documents for
distribution by post.

Efficient Softech Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Provision of information technology services, primarily the
development of proprietary applications for work-flow management,
data conversion and electronic distribution of documents.

Printegrate Sdn. Bhd. *

100

100

To carry on business relating to web-finishing products, forms printing,
and other related business documents.

Efficient International Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Investment holding company.
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Principal activities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

10. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name of subsidiaries

Percentage
of
equity held
(%)
2014
2013

Efficient Storage Solutions Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Property investment and provision of document archiving and
related services.

Efficient Storage Solutions (Techpark)
Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Property investment and provision of document archiving and
related services.

Livingston Education Sdn. Bhd.

100

-

Provision of education services

Efficient Digital Esplanade Sdn. Bhd. #

100

-

Dormant

Principal activities

All subsidiaries are audited by PKF Malaysia.
*

Held through subsidiary, Efficient Mailcom Sdn. Bhd.

#

This subsidiary was incorporated on 12 September 2014 hence no audited report available as its first financial statement
will only be issued on 31 December 2015. The Directors are of the opinion that it would be of no real value to the Group
in view of the insignificant amounts involved.

(a) The Company acquired 2 ordinary shares and 999,998 ordinary shares of RM 1 each respectively on 1 July 2014 and
24 November 2014 representing 100% equity interest in Livingston Education Sdn. Bhd. for a total consideration of RM
1,000,000.
(b) On 5 November 2014, the Company acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM 1 each representing 100% equity interest in
Efficient Digital Esplanade Sdn. Bhd. for a total consideration of RM 2.

Annual Report 2014
Efficient E-Solutions Berhad

71

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

11. Investment properties
			
								
								

Group

2014
RM

2013
RM

Freehold land			
Cost
		
At 31 December 				
12,727,456
			
Fair value						 12,727,456

-

Investment properties comprise of commercial lands. The intended use of the properties is to build commercial building to
generate rental income through letting of the said properties.
12. Investment in associates
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Unquoted shares, at cost		
Share of results of associates		

2,100,000
2,577,966

2,100,000
1,909,163

2,100,000
-

2,100,000
-

					

4,677,966

4,009,163

2,100,000

2,100,000

All the associate companies are incorporated in Malaysia and their details are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Percentage
of
equity held
(%)
2014
2013

Principal activities

Regalia Records Management Sdn. Bhd.#

30

30

Provision of document archiving and related services

Regalia Solutions Sdn. Bhd.#

30

30

Data processing

#
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Audited by a firm of chartered accountants other than PKF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

12. Investment in associates (cont’d)
The summarised financial information of associated companies are as follows:
								
								

2014
RM

2013
RM

Assets and liabilities			
Non-current assets 				
Current asset					

18,710,306
6,477,233

17,310,745
5,599,886

Total assets					

25,187,539

22,910,631

			
Non-current liabilities				
Current liabilities				

6,092,432
3,261,758

6,732,686
2,814,062

9,354,190

9,546,748

10,762,747
2,469,467

9,275,736
1,589,155

Total liabilities					
		
Results			
Revenue						
Profit for the year				
13. Other investments
			
								
								
Golf and country club membership				

2014
RM
150,000

Group

2013
RM
150,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

14. Software development expenditure
			
								
								
Cost
		
As at 1January/31 December 				
			
Accumulated depreciation			
As at 1 January				
Charge for the year				

Group

2014
RM

2013
RM

1,307,297

1,307,297

1,096,525
210,772

990,988
105,537

As at 31 December 				

1,307,297

1,096,525

Carrying value
		
As at 31 December				

-

210,772

15. Goodwill on consolidation
			
								
								
At cost
At 1 January					

Group

1,585,252

2013
RM

1,582,719

Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary				
Written off					

(2,533)

2,533
-

							

(2,533)

2,533

At 31 December				
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2014
RM
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1,582,719

1,585,252

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

15. Goodwill on consolidation (cont’d)
Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating divisions which represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units was based on its value in use. The recoverable amount of the unit was
determined to be higher than its carrying amount.
Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the unit and was
based on the recent financial projections approved by the management. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital of 9.95% (2013: 9.42%). The gross margins used in the projections were based on past
experience and expectations of market developments.
16. Inventories
			
								
								

2014
RM

Group

At cost :
Raw material					1,585,050
Finished goods				
218,208
Less: Written down				
(40,134)
							

1,763,124

2013
RM
1,560,899
176,618
1,737,517

17. Trade receivables
The Group’s normal trade credit term is 10 to 60 days (2013: 10 to 60 days). Other credit terms are assessed and approved
on a case by case basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

18. Non-trade receivables, deposits and prepayments
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Non-trade receivables						
- amount due from associated company		
1,395,046
1,446,245
- third party			
7,251,684
624,756
4,750,000
2,302
					
Deposits 				
Prepayments			

8,646,730
404,564
1,035,412

2,071,001
1,222,130
575,567

4,750,000
2,302
963

2,302
1,119

					 10,086,706

3,868,698

4,753,265

3,421

19. Amount due from subsidiaries
The amount due from subsidiaries represents unsecured, interest-free advances and is repayable on demand.
20. Investment securities
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Available for sale at fair value						
Quoted trust units in Malaysia with
fund management company		
10,313,846
7,212,646
10,313,846
4,986,384
							
Fair value through profit and loss						
Shares – quoted in and outside Malaysia		
8,199,596
4,898,782
8,199,596
4,898,782
					 18,513,442
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12,111,428

18,513,442

9,885,166

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

21. Deposits with licensed banks
Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

						
						

2014
RM

2013
RM

Free from encumbrance		
On lien				

24,258,077
69,913

42,902,330
67,770

13,138,339
-

24,899,799
-

					 24,327,990

42,970,100

13,138,339

24,899,799

The deposits comprise:
a)

The Group’s security deposit of RM69,913 (2013: RM67,770) which is on lien in respect of bank guarantee granted to
a subsidiary company.

b)

The Group’s and the Company’s deposits with licensed banks at the end of the financial year bear interest at a rate from
0.3% to 3.13% (2013: 0.3% to 3.13%) and have an average maturity of 30 to 365 days (2013: 30 to 365 days).

22. Share capital
							Group and Company
					
2014
2013
2014
						Number of Ordinary Shares
RM

2013
RM

Ordinary Share of RM0.10 each:						
Authorised:							
At 1 January/31 December		
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000
							
Issued and fully paid:						
At 1 January/31 December		
709,130,100
709,130,100
70,913,010
70,913,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

23. Share premium
			
								
								
At 1 January/31 December				

Group and Company
2014
2013
RM
RM
4,633,588

4,633,588

Share premium arose from the premium on the issuance of new ordinary shares at above their par value.
24. Retained earnings
Under the single tier system introduced by the Finance Act 2007 which came into effect from the year of assessment 2008,
dividends paid under this system are tax exempt in the hands of shareholders. As such, the whole retained earnings can be
distributed to shareholders as tax exempt dividends.
25. Borrowings - secured
			
								
								

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

Current 									
Term loan - secured				
1,157,469
1,085,259
									
Non-current							
Term loan - secured				
1,830,860
2,986,437
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

25. Borrowings - secured (cont’d)
The remaining maturities of the borrowings as at 31 December are as follows:
			
								
								

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

Repayable within one year				

1,157,469

1,085,259

Repayable more than one year and less than five years			
Repayable more than five years 				
							
							

1,250,637
580,223

1,159,458
1,826,979

1,830,860

2,986,437

							

2,988,329

4,071,696

(a) The term loans descriptions are as follows:
(i)

Term loan I of RM1,100,000 bears interest at a prescribed rate of 3.00% per annum for the first twelve months from
the date of first draw down of facility, subsequently at a prescribed rate of 5.00% per annum for the next twelve
months and thereafter at 0.30% per annum above the lender’s prevailing Base Lending Rate (BLR). It is repayable
over a period of 10 years.

(ii)

Term loan II of RM8,000,000 is repayable over a period of 10 years with equal monthly installment of RM94,842
commencing 1 July 2008 and bears interest at base lending rate of the lender.

		

Current BLR is at 6.85% (2013:6.60%) per annum.

(b) The term loans are secured by the followings:
(i)

Term loan I: First party first deed of assignment which upon issuance of strata title, a first legal charge to be
created over the freehold office lot of subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, and
secured by corporate guarantee from the Company.

(ii)

Term loan II: First party first deed of assignment which upon issuance of strata title, a first legal charge to be created
over the land and building of another subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements, and
secured by a corporate guarantee from the company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

26. Deferred tax liabilities
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

At 1 January			
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 7)		

2,007,361
(323,014)

2,254,506
(247,145)

11,250
(2,445)

18,362
(7,112)

At 31 December		

1,684,347

2,007,361

8,805

11,250

The amount of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are as follows (stated at gross):

						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Property,plant and equipment		
Unutilised tax losses		
Unabsorbed capital allowance		

(11,068)
(801,456)
-

46,306
(1,000,349)
(187,929)

-

-

					

(812,524)

(1,141,972)

-

-

27. Trade payables
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days (2013: 30 to 90 days).
28. Non-trade payables and accruals
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2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Non-trade payables		
Deposits received		
Accruals				

601,052
238,051
1,658,715

915,763
131,856
1,022,339

17,535
58,225

20,179
23,286

					

2,497,818

2,069,958

75,760

43,465
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

29. Dividends
								
Amount
						
In respect of
Dividend
of dividend
Date of
						 financial year
per share
(ta exempt)
Payment
							
%
RM		
Group and Company
2014							
Interim dividend		
2013
2.0
1,418,260
28 March 2014
							
30. Significant related party transactions
Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under normal trade terms. The significant
related party transactions of the group and the company are shown below. The balances related to the below transactions
are shown in Notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements.
						
						
Provision of document archiving and
related services		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
Rental income			

2014
RM

10,583
1,000,000
828,240

Group

2013
RM

26,883
548,240

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

-

-

							
Subsidiaries							
Advances			
313,585
254,545
Debt assignment – waiver		
1,390,000
The Directors are of the opinion that the terms and conditions and prices of the above transactions are not materially
different from that obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

31. Segment information
(a) Business segments
The Group is organised into three major business segments:
(i)

Data and document processing

(ii)

Software development; and

(iii) Forms printing.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
for the financial year, in certain respects as set out below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

31. Segment information (cont’d)
						
Data and
						 Document
Software
Group					 Processing Development
RM
RM
2014 					

Forms
Printing
RM

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

Revenue						
External sales				 45,360,356
Inter-segment sales			 1,000,000

316,151
1,912,144

311,250
2,441,154

68,003
23,000,000

(28,353,298)

46,055,760
-

Total revenue				46,360,356

2,228,295

2,752,404

23,068,003

(28,353,298)

46,055,760

Results 						
Segment results			 7,152,946
Finance costs				
(211,356)
Associated companies – share of results		

(151,379)
(24,236)
-

486,158
-

(228,553)
668,803

(71,793)
-

7,187,379
(235,592)
668,803

Profit before taxation			

(176,615)

486,158

440,250

(71,793)

7,620,590

6,941,590

Tax expenses									
(2,010,245)
Profit attributable to owners of the company							

5,610,345

Net asset						
Segment assets			 75,037,442
Associates				
-

3,899,994
-

3,799,387 114,457,960
4,677,967
-

(66,899,273) 130,295,510
4,677,967

Total assets				 75,037,442

3,899,994

3,799,387 119,135,927

(66,899,273) 134,973,477

						
Segment liabilities			 48,942,725
Tax liabilities				
349,720

1,370,240
-

1,402,741
-

318,247
-

(42,971,869)
-

9,062,084
349,720

Total liabilities				 49,292,445

1,370,240

1,402,741

318,247

(42,971,869)

9,411,804

						
Other information						
Capital expenditure			 3,090,157
1,250
450
Amortisation				210,772
Depreciations				 2,629,707
222,944
104,113

596,400
29,180

-

3,688,257
210,772
2,985,944
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

31. Segment information (cont’d)
						
Data and
						 Document
2013 					 Processing
Group 					
RM

Software
Forms
Development Printing
RM
RM

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

Revenue
External sales 				 43,806,579
Inter-segment sales 			
-

488,110
2,039,849

490,746
3,220,529

73,546
- 44,858,981
- (5,260,378)
-

Total revenue 				 43,806,579

2,527,959

3,711,275

73,546 (5,260,378) 44,858,981

Results
Segment results			 4,189,818
Finance cost				 (270,383)
Associated companies - share of results 		
-

343,563
(32,349)
-

650,266
-

1,010,573
476,746

-

6,194,220
(302,732)
476,746

Profit before taxation 			 3,919,435

311,214

650,266

1,487,319

-

6,368,234

Tax expense 									
(1,508,340)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 							 4,859,894
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Net Assets
Segment assets 				 88,166,131
Associates				
-

21,078,292
-

4,384,461
-

77,738,208 (63,670,556) 127,696,536
4,009,163
- 4,009,163

Total assets 				 88,166,131

21,078,292

4,384,461

81,747,371 (63,670,556) 131,705,699

Segment liabilities 			 62,193,987
Tax liabilities 				
255,103

592,082
-

1,292,394
57,397

1,708,959 (55,684,965) 10,102,457
43,252
355,752

Total liabilities 				 62,449,090

592,082

1,349,791

1,752,211 (55,684,965) 10,458,209

Other Information
Capital expenditure 			 1,545,719
Amortisation				
Depreciation 				 3,044,156

178,371
105,537
393,971

179
120,761
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24,210

-

1,724,269
105,537
3,583,098

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:
							
Other financial
			
Available
Fair value
Loans
liabilities
Group		
Carrying
for sale
through profit
and
measured at
2014			
amount financial assets
or loss
receivables amortised cost
			
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Financial assets									
Trade receivables		
15,933,476
-		 15,933,476
Non-trade receivables, deposits
and prepayments
(exclude prepayment)		
9,051,294
-		
9,051,294
18,513,442
10,313,846
8,199,596		Investment securities		
Other investment		
150,000
150,000
-		Deposit with licensed banks		
24,327,990
-		 24,327,990
9,539,712
-		
9,539,712
Cash and bank balances		
					

77,515,914

10,463,846

8,199,596		
58,852,472

-

									
Financial liabilities									
Trade payables			
1,891,590
-		
1,891,590
Non-trade payables and accruals		
2,497,818
-		
2,497,818
2,988,329
Borrowings			
2,988,329
-		
					

7,377,737

-

-		

-

7,377,737
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
							
Other financial
			
Available
Fair value
Loans
liabilities
Group		
Carrying
for sale
through profit
and
measured at
2013			
amount financial assets
or loss
receivables amortised cost
			
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Financial assets									
Trade receivables		
20,493,830
-		 20,493,830
Non-trade receivables, deposits
and prepayments (excluding prepayment)
3,293,131
-		
3,293,131
Investment securities		
12,111,428
7,212,646
4,898,782		Other investment		
150,000
150,000
Deposit with licensed banks		
42,970,100
-		 42,970,100
Cash and bank balances		
9,115,297
-		
9,115,297
					

88,133,786

7,362,646

4,898,782		
75,872,358

-

									
Financial liabilities								
Trade payables			
1,953,442
-		
1,953,442
Non-trade payables and accruals		
2,069,958
-		
2,069,958
Borrowings			
4,071,696
4,071,696
-		
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8,095,096

-

-		

-

8,095,096

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
							
Other financial
			
Available
Fair value
Loans
liabilities
Company		
Carrying
for sale
through profit
and
measured at
2014			
amount financial assets
or loss
receivables amortised cost
			
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Financial assets									
Non-trade receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(excluding prepayment)		
4,752,302
-		
4,752,302
Investment securities		
18,513,442
10,313,846
8,199,596
-		
13,138,339
-		 13,138,339
Deposits with licensed banks		
Cash and bank balances		
102,903
-		
102,903
					

36,506,986

10,313,846

8,199,596		
17,993,544

-

									
Financial liabilities								
Non-trade payables and accruals		
75,760
-		
75,760
					

75,760

-

-		

-

75,760
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
							
Other financial
			
Available
Fair value
Loans
liabilities
Company		
Carrying
for sale
through profit
and
measured at
2013			
amount financial assets
or loss
receivables amortised cost
			
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
Financial assets									
Non-trade receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(excluding prepayment)		
2,302
-		
2,302
Investment securities		
9,885,166
4,986,384
4,898,782		Deposits with licensed banks		
24,899,799
-		 24,899,799
Cash and bank balances		
104,262
-		
104,262
					

34,891,529

4,986,384

4,898,762		
25,006,363

-

									
Financial liabilities								
Non-trade payables and accruals		
43,465
-		
43,465
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43,465

-

-		

-

43,465

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies					
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial instruments.
The key financial risks include credit risk, interest rate risk, and liquidity risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s and of the Company’s businesses whilst managing its credit risk, interest rate
risk, and liquidity risk.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

Credit risk								
				
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from trade and
other receivables. The Group and the Company manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit approvals,
credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets, the Company minimises credit risk
by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group and the Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of the trade and non-trade receivables as appropriate. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of
similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. Impairment is estimated by management
based on prior experience and the current economic environment.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group and the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposure to a single customer
or to a group of customers.
Exposure to credit risk
As the Group and the Company does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)		
Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of the Group trade receivables, as at reporting date is as follows:						
						
Group				
					
2014
Not past due			
Past due:				
- 1-30 days			
- 31-120 days			
3- More than 120 days		

Gross
Amount
RM

Individual
Impairment
RM

Collective
Impairment
RM

Carrying
Value
RM

9,740,108

-

-

9,740,108

2,909,504
1,997,669
1,286,195

-		
-

2,909,504
1,997,669
1,286,195

-

-

15,933,476

6,241,836

-

-

6,241,836

5,535,006
5,779,446
2,937,542

-		
-

5,535,006
5,779,446
2,937,542

-

20,493,830

						 15,933,476
2013				
Not past due			
Past due:				
- 1-30 days			
- 31-120 days			
- More than 120 days		

						 20,493,830

-

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those in significant financial difficulties
and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancement.
The collective impairment allowance is determined based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the services rendered,
determined by reference to past default experience.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular customers that have been
transacting with the Group. The Group use ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)		
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
Any receivables having significant balances past due or more than 60 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are
monitored individually. The Group and the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
trade receivables. They are substantially companies with good collection track record and no recent history of default.
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM6,193,368 (2013: RM14,251,994) that are past due at the reporting date
but not impaired. The management confident that these receivables which are unsecured are recoverable as these accounts
are still active and a majority of them are financial institutions with sound financial standing.
Interest rate risk
The Group and the Company primary interest rate risk relates to interest earning from deposits with licensed banks and term
loans from financial institutions.
						
						
Deposits with licenced banks		
Borrowings			

2014
RM

Group

24,327,990
(2,988,329)

Net exposure			21,339,661

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

42,970,100
(4,071,696)

13,138,339
-

24,899,799
-

38,898,404

13,138,339

24,899,799

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates as at the end of the reporting
period, with all other variables held constant:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Interest rate risk (cont’d)
						
2014
						
Increase/
						
(Decrease)
						
RM

Group

2013
Increase/
(Decrease)
RM

Company
2014
2013
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
RM
RM

Effects on profit after taxation						
Increase of 10 basis points (“bp”)		
21,340
38,898
13,138
24,899
Decrease of 10 basis points (“bp”)		
(21,340)
(38,898)
(13,138)
(24,899)
Liquidity risk
The Group and the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial liabilities as at reporting date based
on undiscounted contractual payments:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

32. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Maturity analysis (cont’d)

							
			
Contractual
Contractual		
Group			
Carrying
interest
cash
Within
				
amount
rate
flow
1 year
			
RM
RM
RM
2014
Trade payables			
Non-trade payables and accruals		
2,497,818
2,988,329
Borrowings			
						
					

1,891,590
6.85%
to 6.90%

-1,891,590		
2,497,818		
2,497,818
2,988,329		
1,157,469

7,377,737		 7,377,737		5,546,877

After
1 year
RM
1,891,590 1,830,860

1,830,860

									
						
2013			
Trade payables		
1,953,442
1,953,442		
1,953,442
Non-trade payables and accruals		
2,069,958		
-2,069,958		
2,069,958 Borrowings			
4,071,696
6.85%
4,071,696		
1,085,259
2,986,437
						
to 6.90%
					

			
Company		
				
			
2014
Non-trade payables and accruals		

8,095,096		 8,095,096		5,108,659

Carrying
amount
RM
75,760

Contractual
interest
rate

-

Contractual		
cash
Within
flow
1 year
RM
RM
75,760		

2,986,437

After
1 year
RM

75,760

-

									
2013									
Non-trade payables and accruals		
43,465
43,465		
43,465

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

33. Fair values
The financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next 12 months approximated fair values due to the relatively short
term maturity of the financial instruments.
Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instrument carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

a Level 1:
a Level 2:
			
a Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liabilities, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Group and the Company do not have any financial liabilities carried a fair value or any financial instruments classified as level
3 as at reporting date.

Group 				
						
2014
AFS financial asset		
FVTPL financial asset		

Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

10,313,846
8,199,596

150,000
-

-

10,463,846
8,199,596

						 18,513,442

150,000

-

18,663,442

2013							
AFS financial asset		
7,212,646
150,000
FVTPL financial asset		
4,898,782
						 12,111,428
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150,000

-

7,362,646
4,898,782
12,261,428

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

33. Fair values (cont’d)

Company 			
						
2014
AFS financial asset		
FVTPL financial asset		

Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

10,313,846
8,199,596

-

-

10,313,846
8,199,596

						 18,513,442

-

-

18,513,442

2013							
AFS financial asset		
4,986,384
FVTPL financial asset		
4,898,782
-

4,986,384
4,898,782

						

9,885,166

-

-

9,885,166

34. Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December
2014.
The debt to equity ratio of the Group as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:
			
								
								

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

Total interest bearing borrowings				

2,988,329

4,071,696

Equity attributable to owners of the Company			

125,561,673

121,247,490

Debt to equity ratio (times)				

0.02

0.03
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

35. Commitments

			
								
								
Approved and contracted for:			
Property, plant and equipment				

Group

2014
RM
11,471,310

2013
RM
723,200

			
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:
			
								
								

Group

2014
RM

2013
RM

Within one year				
Between two to five years				

240,000
120,000

98,000
-

							

360,000

98,000

36. Contingent liabilities

			
								
								
Secured
Bank guarantee				

			
								
								
Unsecured
Corporate guarantees issued to financial institutions for banking
facilities granted to subsidiary companies				
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Group

2014
RM
470,000

2014
RM

Company

9,100,000

2013
RM
530,000

2013
RM

9,100,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

37. Supplementary information breakdown of retained earnings into realised and unrealised
The breakdown of the retained earnings of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December into realised and unrealised
profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010
and presented in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
						
						

2014
RM

Group

2013
RM

2014
RM

Company

2013
RM

Total retained earnings
- Realised			49,177,239
- Unrealised			
(1,288,325)

46,099,443
(1,736,344)

26,176,221
351,305

5,441,334
282,267

					 47,888,914

44,363,099

26,527,526

5,723,601

Add : Consolidation adjustments 		

1,880,686

1,214,416

-

-

Retained earnings as per financial statements

49,769,600

45,577,515

26,527,526

5,723,601

38. Significant event after the reporting period
(i)

The Company has on 3 March 2015 acquired the entire equity interest in Digital Junction Sdn. Bhd. (1128431-T)
(“DJSB”) comprising 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each for a total cash consideration of RM2.00 only (“Acquisition”).
DJSB is a dormant company and its authorised share capital is RM400,000 comprising of 400,000 ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each, of which 2 shares have been issued and fully paid-up. The intended principal activities of DJSB are IT
system integration, shared and support, and any other IT related services.

(ii)

The Group has on 10 March 2015 entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Lembaga Tabung Haji (“The
Proprietor”) and THP Enstek Development Sdn. Bhd. (“The Vendor”) to purchase 18,928 square metres of freehold land
held at Bandar Baru Enstek, District of Seremban, State of Negeri Sembilan for a total consideration of RM6,631,707.68.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

39. General information
The Company is a public limited company that is incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed
in Note 10 to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial
year.
The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 3, Jalan Astaka U8/82, Taman
Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong, Seksyen U8, Bukit Jelutong, 40150, Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 April 2015.
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2014

Title / location

Description /
existing use

HS (D) 142710, PT No. 17655,
Mukim Damansara, Daerah
Petaling, Negeri Selangor

Industrial land –3 storey
industrial building with
4 storey office building
/ production facility and
administration office

Parcel No. 2A-21-1, Level 21,
Block 2A, Plaza Sentral Phase
II, Jalan Stesen Sentral, 50470
Kuala Lumpur

Commercial office lot /
Administration office

Tenure/ date of
expiry of lease
Freehold land
and building

Date of
acquisition by
the Company
30.06. 2008

Approximate Total
age of
land
building
areas
(years)
(sq. m)
6

Total
built-up
area
(sq. m)

Net book
value as at
31.12.2013
(RM)

8,152.24 12,040.25 25,364,355

Freehold Office 11.07.2006
Lot

8

N/A

252.56

1,224,115

Freehold
Construction in Progress Condominium

25.01.2013

-

N/A

148.09

632,800

Parcel No. 11-01, Level 11,
Seaview Tower, Ocean Palms
Condominum, KM9 Batang Tiga,
Tanjong Kling, 76400 Melaka

Condominum / Staff
Accomodation

Freehold
Condominium

08.10.2013

18

N/A

131.00

387,100

GRN245261, Lot 34650,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar Baru
Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land

21.02.2014

1

9,796.00

N/A

2,744,823

GRN245262, Lot 34651,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar Baru
Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land
Freehold land

21.02.2014

1

12,168.00

N/A

3,232,343

GRN245268, Lot 34658, Daerah
Seremban, Bandar Baru Enstek,
Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land
Freehold land

08.07.2014

1

11,735.00

N/A

3,399,624

GRN245269, Lot 34659, Daerah
Seremban, Bandar Baru Enstek,
Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land
Freehold land

08.07.2014

1

11,566.00

N/A

3,350,665

Parcel No. C1-22, Level 22,
Olive Tree Residences, Mukim
12, Daerah Barat Jaya, Penang
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 24 APRIL 2015

Substantial Shareholders
					
Name				
Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd
Cheah Chee Kong		
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd
Soon Yoke Leng		
Ho Choong Lim		
Beaufort International Equities Inc
Singapore Post Enterprise Private Limited
Singapore Post Limited
Singapore Telecommunications Limited
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited

Direct		
Shareholdings
%
107,795,000
9,734,500
6,000,000
106,200,000
3,500,000
63,896,600
147,529,100
-

15.20
1.37
0.85
14.98
0.49
9.01
20.80
-

Indirect
Shareholdings
106,200,000 1
213,995,000 2
213,995,000 2
106,200,000 3
106,200,000 3
-		
-		
147,529,100 4
147,529,100 4
147,529,100 4

%
14.98
30.18
30.18
14.98
14.98
20.80
20.80
20.80

Notes:
Deemed interested by virtue of its shareholdings in Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd (“CSSSB”) pursuant to Section 6A of the
Companies Act, 1965
2.
Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd (“CCKSB”) and CCKSB’s shareholdings in
CSSSB pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965
3.
Deemed interested by virtue of his / her shareholdings in CSSSB pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965
4.
Deemed interested in the shareholdings held by Singapore Post Enterprise Private Limited (“SPE”) by virtue of Section 6A
of the Companies Act, 1965
1.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 24 APRIL 2015

(cont’d)

Directors’ Shareholdings
					
Name				

Direct		
Shareholdings
%

Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Cheah Chee Kong		
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Soon Yoke Leng		
Ho Hin Choy			
Voong Kian Yee		

2,000,000
9,734,500
6,000,000
3,500,000
-

0.28
1.37
0.85
0.49
-

Indirect
Shareholdings
-		
213,995,000 1
213,995,000 1
106,200,000 2
-		
-		

%
30.18
30.18
14.98
-

Notes:
Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd (“CCKSB”) and CCKSB’s shareholdings in
Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd (“CSSSB”) pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965
2.
Deemed interested by virtue of her shareholdings in CSSSB pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965
1.

Class of Equity Security
Authorised share capital
Issued & fully paid-up capital
Class of shares		
Voting rights			

:
:
:
:

RM200,000,000.00
RM70,913,010.00
Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
One vote per ordinary share

Distribution of Shareholdings
Holdings					

No. of Holders

Total Holdings

%

Less than 100 shares		
100 to 1,000 shares		
1,001 to 10,000 shares		
10,001 to 100,000 shares		
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares		
5% and above of issued shares		

3
359
1,329
2,378
355
5

100
136,850
9,702,050
93,787,400
145,592,000
459,911,700

0.00
0.02
1.37
13.22
20.53
64.86

Total 					

4,429

709,130,100

100.00
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 24 APRIL 2015

(cont’d)

30 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
NO NAME			
1

NO. OF SHARES

%

AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
147,529,100
20.80
DBS VICKERS SECS (S) PTE LTD FOR SINGAPORE POST ENTERPRISE				
PRIVATE LIMITED				
					
2 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
106,500,000
15.02
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT - AMBANK (M) BERHAD FOR				
CHEAH CHEE KONG SDN BHD				
					
3 CHEAH SWEE SIN SDN BHD		
106,200,000
14.98
					
4 HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
51,896,600
7.32
EXEMPT AN FOR J.P. MORGAN BANK, LUXEMBOURG S.A.				
(JPM INTL BK LTD)				
					
5 HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
46,491,000
6.56
EXEMPT AN FOR CREDIT SUISSE (SG BR-TST-ASING)				
					
6 ASIAN NEW CENTURY CAPITAL SDN BHD		
10,416,600
1.47
					
7 CHEAH CHEE KONG		
9,734,500
1.37
					
8 VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI		
6,000,000
0.85
					
9 HOR ING NGAR		
3,672,500
0.52
					
10 SOON YOKE LENG		
3,500,000
0.49
					
11 CHAI SIEW WEE		
2,600,000
0.37
					
12 LEONG SIEW LYN		
2,100,000
0.30
					
13 ABDUL LATIF BIN ABDULLAH		
2,000,000
0.28
					
14 YONG LOY HUAT		
2,000,000
0.28
					
15 LAI CHIE KING		
1,700,000
0.24
					
16 BRENDEN JOHN A/L JOHN PEREIRA		
1,647,100
0.23
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 24 APRIL 2015

NO NAME			

(cont’d)

NO. OF SHARES

%

					
17 DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD		
1,600,000
0.23
EXEMPT AN FOR KUMPULAN SENTIASA CEMERLANG SDN BHD				
(TSTAC/CLNT)				
					
18 SHAIK AQMAL BIN SHAIK ALLAUDIN		
1,600,000
0.23
					
19 CHUAH AH NEE		
1,300,000
0.18
					
20 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
1,219,600
0.17
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR			
SYED SYAKIRAN BIN SYED ABDUL RAHMAN				
					
21 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
1,200,000
0.17
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI BOON CHAI				
					
22 CHEW PAIK YONG @ ANGELINE CHEW		
1,176,500
0.17
					
23 LEE MOI YIN			
1,105,000
0.16
					
24 TOH CHIN TIAN		
1,074,300
0.15
					
25 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
1,060,000
0.15
MOHD HAFIZ BIN BOTA				
					
26 ARIFUDDIN BIN MOHAMED SHAH		
1,010,000
0.14
					
27 CHEAH CHEE KONG SDN BHD		
1,000,000
0.14
					
28 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
1,000,000
0.14
CIMB BANK FOR TAN ENG LEONG (MQ0437)				
					
29 LOH YOKE FUN		
1,000,000
0.14
					
30 MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
1,000,000
0.14
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ZULKIFLI BIN ISMAIL				
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Greens III, Tropicana Golf &
Country Resort, Jalan Kelab Tropicana, 47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 25 June 2015 at 10:00 a.m.
to transact the following businesses:
1.

To receive and adopt the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and
the reports of the directors and auditors thereon.
		
2. To re-elect Ms Soon Yoke Leng, the Director who retires pursuant to Article 120 of the Company’s Articles
of Association.
		
3. To re-appoint Messrs PKF as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors
to determine their remuneration.

To refer to
Explanatory
Note 1
(Resolution 1)
(Resolution 2)

Special Business:
To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following resolutions:
Ordinary Resolutions:
		
4. Continuing in Office of Independent Non-Executive Director
“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah who has served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to
act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
		
5. Continuing in Office of Independent Non-Executive Director

(Resolution 3)

“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr Ho Hin Choy who has served as an Independent NonExecutive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
		
6. Authority to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
			
“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, and subject to the approvals of the relevant
governmental and/or regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares
in the Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions, for such purposes as the Directors may,
in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued in any one
financial year of the Company does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being and that the Directors be and are hereby also empowered to obtain approval
for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
and that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company”.

(Resolution 4)
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(Resolution 5)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7.

(cont’d)

Proposed Share Buy-Back By Efficient E-Solutions Berhad of Up To 10% of the Total Issued and Paid-Up
Share Capital of The Company

(Resolution 6)

“THAT, subject to the Companies Act, 1965, rules, regulations and orders made pursuant to the Act,
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other relevant authority, the Directors of the
Company be and are hereby unconditionally and generally authorised, to the extent permitted by law, to
purchase such number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company as may be determined by the
Directors from time to time through Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad upon such terms and conditions
as the Directors may deem fit, necessary and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided that the
maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and/or held by the Company
shall not exceed ten per centum (10%) of its issued and paid-up share capital; and the maximum funds to
be allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing its own shares shall not exceed the retained
profits and/or share premium account of the Company for the time being.
THAT upon completion of the purchase(s) by the Company of its own shares, the Directors are authorised
to decide at their discretion to cancel all the shares so purchased and/or to retain the shares so purchased
as treasury shares of which may be distributed as dividends to shareholders and/or to resell on the market
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and/or to retain part thereof as treasury shares and cancel the
remainder.
THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered to do all acts and things and to take all
such steps as necessary [including opening and maintaining of a central depositories account under the
Securities Industry (Central Depository) Act, 1991]; and to enter into and execute all relevant documents
with any party or parties to implement, finalise and give full effect to the aforesaid purchase(s) with full
powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments, as may be required or
imposed by any relevant authority or authorities.
AND THAT the authority conferred by this resolution shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company, following the general meeting at which this resolution
was passed at which time it will lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the authority
is renewed, either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; or the revocation or variation
by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting, whichever occurs
first, but not so as to prejudice the completion of purchase(s) by the Company before the aforesaid expiry
date.”
8.

To transact any other matter for which due notices shall have been given in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Companies Act, 1965.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(cont’d)

By Order of the Board
ESTHER SOON YOKE LENG MAICSA 7002027
TAN KEAN WAI MAICSA 7056310
Company Secretaries
Selangor Darul Ehsan
29 May 2015
Notes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.
7.

Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 19 June 2015 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at this meeting
or appoint proxy to attend and vote for his/her behalf.
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one (1) or two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his behalf.
A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provision of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965
shall not apply.
Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding
to be represented by each proxy.
Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 that
holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) there is no limit
to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if
the appointer is a corporation, under its common seal, or the hand of its attorney duly authorized.
The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the Meeting or adjourned Meeting.

Explanatory Notes
8.

Item 1 of the Agenda
This item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169 (1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require shareholders’
approval for the Audited Financial Statements. Henceforth, this item is not put forward for voting.

106

Annual Report 2014
Efficient E-Solutions Berhad
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9.

(cont’d)

Ordinary Resolutions 3 & 4
In line with Recommendation 3.3 of Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012, the Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah & Mr Ho Hin Choy, who have served as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company for a cumulative term of more than nine years, and upon its recommendation, the Board of Directors has recommended
them to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company based on the following justifications:-

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

They have fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and thus, they would be able to function as check and balance,
bring an element of objectivity to the Board;
They do not have any conflict of interest with the Company and have not been entering/are not expected to enter into
contract(s) especially material contract(s) with the Company and/or its subsidiary companies;
They have devoted sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced decision
making; and
They have exercised their due care and diligence during their tenure as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company and carried out their professional duties in the best interest of the Company and shareholders.

10. Ordinary Resolution 5
The Company had, during the 11th AGM held on 26 June 2014, obtained its shareholders’ approval for the general mandate for
issuance of shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965. No share has been issued as at the date of this Notice.
The proposed resolution 5 is a renewal of the general mandate for issuance of shares by the Company under Section 132D. This
mandate, if passed, will empower the directors of the Company to allot and issue shares in the Company up to an aggregate amount
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being for such purposes as they consider would be in
the interest of the Company. This would avoid any delay and cost involved in convening a general meeting to specifically approve
such an issue of shares for fund raising activities, including but not limited to placing of shares for the purpose of funding current
and/or future investment project(s), working capital and/or acquisition as well as any strategic opportunities involving equity deals
which may require the Company to allot and issue new shares on urgent basis. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general
meeting will expire at the next AGM of the Company.
11. Ordinary Resolution 6
The Proposed Ordinary Resolution 6, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to purchase the Company’s shares up
to ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed
the total retained profits and share premium account of the Company.
Based on the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the audited retained
profits and share premium account stood at approximately RM49,769,600 and RM4,633,588 respectively.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad
•

Details of individuals who are standing for election as Directors.
No individual is seeking election as a Director at the forthcoming Twelfth Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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PROXY FORM
I/ We,

CDS Account No.:
Number of shares held

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of

NRIC/ Passport No./ Company No.
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a *member/ members of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD, hereby appoint
NRIC/ Passport No.

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of

(FULL ADDRESS)

*and/ or failing him/ her,

NRIC/ Passport No.

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of

(FULL ADDRESS)

or the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/ our proxy to vote for *me/ us on *my/ our behalf at the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held at Greens III, Tropicana Golf & Country Resort, Jalan Kelab Tropicana, 47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 25 June 2015 at
10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof and to vote as indicated below:No. Resolutions

For

1

Re-election of Ms Soon Yoke Leng

2

Re-appointment of Messrs PKF as auditors

Against

Special Business
3

Continuing in Office of Independent Non-Executive Director – Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah

4

Continuing in Office of Independent Non-Executive Director – Mr Ho Hin Choy

5

Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D

6

Proposed Share Buy-Back By Efficient E-Solutions Berhad of Up To 10% of the Total Issued and
Paid-Up Share Capital of The Company

Dated this

day of June, 2015
Signature/ Common Seal of Shareholder

* Delete if inapplicable
NOTES
i.
Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 19 June 2015 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy to attend and vote
for his/her behalf.
ii. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one (1) or two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his behalf.
iii. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provision of Section 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply.
iv. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
v. Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 that holds ordinary shares in the Company
for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may
appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
vi. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the appointer is a corporation,
under its common seal, or the hand of its attorney duly authorized.
vii. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for
holding the Meeting or adjourned Meeting.

Postage

The Company Secretary

EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD
No. 3 Jalan Astaka U8/82
Taman Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong
Seksyen U8, Bukit Jelutong
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan

(632479-H)

